West Ditch – Sevier River NWQI/MRBI Watershed Assessment



Table of Contents

1.0	Background and Purpose of the assessment	4
1.1	General Overview and location of the watershed assessment area	4
1.2	Specific water quality degradation resource concerns and impairments	5
1.3	Constituents of Concern	6
1.4	Opportunities and objectives for meeting water quality goals	7
1.5	An assessment of NRCS's ability to help partners reach the watershed goals	8
2.0	Watershed Characterization	8
2.1	Location of Watershed within the drainage network	8
2.2	Landscape characteristics of the MLRA in which the Watershed resides	8
2.3	Climate	9
2.4	Topography	.11
2.5	Geology, Geomorphology, and Soils and Soil Interpretations	.12
2.6	Drainage Network	.25
2.7	Land Cover and Land Use	.28
2.8	Socioeconomic Conditions	.29
2.9	Other	.30
3.0	Hydrologic and Water Quality Characterization	.30
3.1	Available Data and Resources	.30
3.2	Runoff and Streamflow Hydrology and Irrigation	.34
3.3	Water Quality Conditions in the Watershed	.36
4.0	Resource Analysis and Source Assessment	.48
4.1	Causes of Resource Problems	.48
4.2	Potential Tools to Use	.48
4.3	Preliminary Analysis to address the Problem With Available Tools	.49
4.4	Analysis of Treatment and Opportunities	.50
5.0	Summary and Recommendations	.55
5.1	Water Quality Impairments Description	.55
5.2	Goal and Practice Efficiencies Description	.55
5.3	Interim Metrics to Track Progress	.55
5.4	Locations of Critical Source Areas or Vulnerable Areas Needing Treatment	.56
5.5	Description and Evaluation of Planned Practice Scenarios and Alternatives That Meet the	
Wat	er Quality Objectives	.56
5.6	NEPA Documentation	.56
6.0	Appendix: Follow Up	.62

Figures

Figure 1.1.a West Ditch-Sevier River Watershed	4
Figure 2.3.a Precipitation Zones	10
Figure 2.4.a Topography	11
Figure 2.5.a West Ditch Watershed Geology	13
Figure 2.6.a Lakes & Streams (Flow Network)	26
Figure 2.6.b National Wetland Inventory	27
Figure 2.7.a Land Cover and Use	28
Figure 3.1.a East Bench and West Ditch Sub-Watersheds	
Figure 3.2.a Mean monthly discharge for selected stations on the Upper Sevier River.	36
Figure 3.3.a Estimated load reduction for impaired river segments (units in kg/yr)	39
Figure 3.3.b Mean TP loads for selected stations on the Upper Sevier River	40
Figure 3.3.c Annual TP loads for selected stations	42
Figure 3.3.d Dissolved and total phosphorus ratios	43
Figure 3.3.e Correlation of TP to TSS at station 4949450	43
Figure 3.3.f Regression analysis of TP and TSS Loads for Station 4949450	44
Figure 3.3.g TSS loads at selected stations on the Upper Sevier River	45
Figure 3.3.h Estimated sediment loads from streambank erosion	46
Figure 4.4.a Treatment Areas	53
Figure 4.4.b Potential Treatment Areas	

Tables

Table 3.1.1 Utah Division of Water Quality monitoring locations	32
Table 3.3.1 Impaired waterbodies and pollutants of concern (2002 303d List)	37
Table 3.3.2 Utah Water Quality Criteria for Class 3A Waters	37
Table 4.4.1 Estimated Load Reduction required by TMDL	50
Table 4.4.2 West Ditch Conservation Practices Summary	51
Table 4.4.3 Available Load Reductions vs. Required Load reductions	51
Table 4.4.4 Practice Quantities and Cost Estimates for West Ditch Watershed	54

1.0 Background and Purpose of the assessment

1.1 General Overview and location of the watershed assessment area

The West Ditch-Sevier River Watershed (HUC-160300010504) is approximately 11,663 acres in size. The watershed is located in Garfield County, directly north of the town of Panguitch. The upper reaches of the watershed consist of largely ephemeral gullies, with the lower sections of the watershed being mixed with irrigated hay and pastures.

The watershed is classified according to Hydrologic Unit Cataloging HUC). The West Ditch watershed is part of the Escalante Desert Sevier Lake (4th level HUC 16030001), and while it is found surrounded by the Upper and Lower Colorado Region, the watershed ends up draining to Sevier Lake, located near Delta, Utah. For a summary of the entire Upper Sevier Watershed refer to the Upper Sevier Watershed Management Plan <u>https://deq.utah.gov/legacy/programs/water-guality/watersheds/docs/2015/08Aug/UpperSevier.pdf</u>.

Elevation ranges from 6466 feet along the Sevier River to 8550 located at the top of the watershed at the base of Blind Spring Mountain. The West Ditch Watershed contains roughly 5.2 miles of the Upper Sevier River, which flows Northward through wetlands and pastures. Gentle rolling hills alongside high altitude forests are characteristic of the Paunsaugunt and Aquarius Plateaus in which the watershed resides.



West Ditch-Sevier River Watershed

Figure 1.1.a West Ditch-Sevier River Watershed

1.2 Specific water quality degradation resource concerns and impairments

The State of Utah has designated the Upper Sevier River as a coldwater (3A) fishery. In 2002, the Upper Sevier River was listed on the 303(d) list of impaired waters, as a result of elevated phosphorus levels in the river. The source of much of the phosphorous in the water column was associated with the high levels of Total Suspended Sediment (TSS) in the system.

As a result, a Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) was completed for the Upper Sevier River in 2004 to help reduce phosphorous levels and help it meet its beneficial use as a coldwater fishery. The TMDL identified the primary sources of phosphorous as: habitat degradation from agricultural activities, nonpoint source pollution from rangeland, summer home development, septic systems, recreational activities, and urban runoff.

Key issues identified for the West Ditch Watershed are: 1) Enhancement and Protection of Riparian Habitat; 2) Pasture Management; 3) Irrigation Water Management

Pasture Management

Grazing has been an integral part of lands within the West Ditch Watershed since pioneers first settled the area around Hatch (~1872). Today's grazing practices are much better than those of the past: better pasture management increases productivity, maintains vegetation diversity, discourages native weed introduction, and leaves critical riparian areas intact. Effective pasture management practices include developing pasture management plans, rotating animals through pastured areas, limiting herd size, fencing livestock from riparian areas, maintaining browse species diversity, and leaving trees and shrubs within pastures and near stream banks.

Enhancement and Protection of Riparian Habitat

Woody plant species and late seral herbaceous species are lacking along many riparian corridors, particularly along the Sevier River and its tributaries. In addition, most of the water within this section is removed and used for irrigation. In areas throughout the watershed, where woody plant species (willow and cottonwood) are present, recruitment of young plants is limited; the majority of plants are in a mature stage. Bank erosion has resulted in higher width/depth ratios along many stream corridors and increased head cuts on the upstream ends.

Riparian areas are of critical importance to birds, fish, amphibians, aquatic invertebrates and other wildlife species. They provide critical breeding habitat for many southwestern neotropical birds, as well as water, shade, food and shelter for other wildlife. Riparian areas also provide migratory routes for many bird species, and sheltered pathways to other habitats for other wildlife species.

Irrigation Water Management

Historically, much of the irrigated farmland in the Upper Sevier Watershed was irrigated through flood irrigation. Flood irrigation can result in higher than desired return flows to the river, resulting in elevated levels of sediment, animal waste, and fertilizer in the system. Flood irrigation has also proven to decrease crop yield when compared to crops that are irrigated using improved irrigation methods. Ideally, all fields that are irrigated by wild flood irrigation should be converted to some other type of flood irrigation practice such as pressurized irrigation systems or gated pipe.

1.3 Constituents of Concern

The State of Utah has designated the Upper Sevier River as a coldwater (3A) fishery. In 2002, the Upper Sevier River was listed on the 303(d) list of impaired waters, as a result of elevated phosphorus levels in the river. The source of much of the phosphorous in the water column was associated with the high levels of Total Suspended Sediment (TSS) in the system. These high levels of phosphorous can result in reduced oxygen levels in the river, which can stress the aquatic organisms present. The elevated concentrations of TSS can impact the aquatic communities, while degrading water quality as well.

While there are various point sources located throughout the Upper Sevier watershed that contribute to the phosphorous impairment, the over all purpose of this plan is to help reduce phosphorus concentrations in the West Ditch Watershed by addressing nonpoint source pollution.

Phosphorus loads are highest during April and May, which corresponds with the spring runoff. The sharp drop in loading in the middle and lower river during June may reflect the effect of irrigation diversions reducing flows and concentrations due to land application. Loads remain low in the upper river the remainder of the year while higher loads in the lower river reflect irrigation return flows and streambank erosion from higher fall stream flows. In addition, levels may increase in downstream reaches as a result of over-wintering of livestock in the Panguitch Valley.

Primary mechanisms of phosphorus delivery from cattle to streams include direct deposition in streams and on streambanks and return flows from flooding of pasture utilized for grazing and/or fertilized with manure. In an effort to estimate contributions of total phosphorus from grazing, cattle numbers were obtained from the landowners in the watershed and were divided by subwatershed (Dodds, 2003). The total number of animals in each watershed varies by season as cattle are moved from summer to winter range, as well as into and out of the watershed.

Dissolved phosphorus appears in surface waters usually from sources of organic nutrient enrichment such as a wastewater treatment plant, animal feedlot waste, or other point source discharge.

Nonpoint sources of phosphorus include natural background sources from the weathering of parent material and organic matter delivered to the streams as soil and plant litter. The movement of nutrients such as phosphorus through a watershed is a complex process since plant and algal uptake plays a strong role in the cycling of nutrients. In addition, the nature of the Sevier River watershed is such that

water is continually diverted and land applied and returning to the channel via overland flow and shallow groundwater return flows. In the process, phosphorus (as well TSS) loads and concentrations can be reduced when irrigation water from the river is distributed to crops.

1.4 Opportunities and objectives for meeting water quality goals

While the larger watershed plan for the Upper Sevier River identifies many resource concerns, the purpose of this plan is to improve water quality in the main stem of the Upper Sevier River as required in the TMDL developed by the Division of Water Quality. These plans identify four goals and accompanying objectives that will help achieve the goal of reducing sediment and phosphorous loading into the main stem of the Sevier River in the West Ditch Watershed.

Grazing Management

Goal: Better manage cattle to improve pasture conditions, reduce erosion, and increase wildlife habitat within the riparian corridor

Objectives:

- Use a combination of timing, duration, and fencing to improve pasture conditions and protect streambanks from trampling.
- Install fencing where appropriate to limit the introduction of animal waste into canals, ditches and streams.
- Install additional fencing to allow for improved pasture rotation and to protect sensitive areas allowing for longer rest periods of pastures and controlled access to forage.
- Install off-site watering or hardened access to allow cattle to drink, while reducing impacts to the riparian areas.
- Develop grazing management plans that identify the number of cattle present and the duration of the grazing period in pastures adjacent to riparian areas.

Stream Bank Restoration

Goal: Restore and re-vegetate stream banks, improving water quality and improving aquatic habitat.

Objectives:

- Restore streams to their proper hydraulic and channel geometry (pattern, profile, cross section dimensions).
- Stabilize eroding streambanks and install in-stream cover and structures.
- Establish woody riparian vegetation where needed.

Irrigation Water Management

Goal: Improve irrigation water management through improved efficiency and water conservation

Objectives:

- Assist landowners and obtain funding to convert wild flood irrigated pastures and farmland to more efficient irrigation practices.
- Work with local irrigation companies to develop infrastructure conducive to more efficient irrigation methods.

1.5 An assessment of NRCS's ability to help partners reach the watershed goals

NRCS can provide technical assistance, conservation planning and increased initiative funding through this initiative to the partners to help reach the watershed goals. Planned NRCS conservation practices that will be implemented are, but not limited to: streambank stabilization, fencing, prescribed grazing, watering facility, wetland restoration, and irrigation water management.

2.0 Watershed Characterization

2.1 Location of Watershed within the drainage network

The West Ditch-Sevier River Watershed (HUC 12) is within the Upper Colorado River major watershed in south-central Utah, on the eastern side of the HUC 8 Sevier River Watershed. It encompasses 11,658 acres.

2.2 Landscape characteristics of the MLRA in which the Watershed resides

The West Ditch-Sevier River Watershed lies entirely within the Wasatch and Uinta Mountains (MLRA 47), which stretches across the upper elevations throughout central and northern Utah. It includes all of Utah's higher-elevation mountain ranges, including the mountains on the west side of the East Bench-Sevier River Watershed.

Wasatch and Uinta Mountains, MLRA 47

The soils within the Wasatch and Uinta Mountains MLRA formed in arid or semi-arid conditions, are young soils with little development, are slightly more developed, or are more well-developed and fertile.

The soils in this MLRA have a frigid soil temperature regime on plateaus and the lower mountain slopes, and have a cryic soil temperature regime at the higher elevations. This means the mean annual soil temperature is above 0°C (32°F) and less than 8°C (46°F). Frigid and cryic

soils have the same mean annual soil temperature range, but frigid soils are warmer than cryic soils in the summer.

The soil moisture regime has moist, cool winters and warm, dry summers at the higher elevations and grades to a semiarid climate in the lower elevations. These soils may or may not need to be irrigated for agricultural production. Since they are mostly located at elevations where the temperature limits the growing season or are too steep for cropping, they are not usually used for developed agriculture other than for pasture, rangeland, and forestry.

The soils are typically formed as parent material that was washed down slope by water or gravity or developed as parent material decayed in place. They are derived from sedimentary and igneous rocks.

These soils can be very shallow to very deep. They are generally well drained, and loamy or loamy skeletal (rocky).

The soils in the West Ditch-Sevier River Watershed are similar to most soils found on the Colorado Plateau, in that they are directly tied to their geology of origin and the elevation, aspect, and slope upon which they have developed. The varying soil conditions of the area produce various challenges.

2.3 Climate

The West Ditch – Sevier River Watershed has a cool semi-arid climate with summers featuring hot afternoons and cold mornings, and cold winters. The high altitude and relatively high latitude means that mornings are cold throughout the year and freezing for most of it. The watershed receives the majority of precipitation in the form of snow during winter months. Although heavy thunderstorms are common throughout the summer months, causing increased overland erosion. Precipitation ranges from 9 inches in the lower elevation (6,500') to 19 inches in the upper elevation (above 7000').

West Ditch-Sevier River Watershed Precipitation Zones



Figure 2.3.a Precipitation Zones

2.4 Topography



West Ditch-Sevier River Watershed Topography

Figure 2.4.a Topography

2.5 Geology, Geomorphology, and Soils and Soil Interpretations

Geologically, the area consists of mixed volcanics (recent basalts, andesite, rhyolite, etc.) and Wasatch Limestone formation. Basalt flows are present at higher elevations, while the lower portion of the watershed consists of rounded hills and broad valleys.

The majority of the watershed (over two-thirds in the center) is Quaternary Unit age, alluvium rock type 1 and colluvium rock type 2. The western portion of the watershed is Tertiary Unit age, volcanic rock (aphanitic) rock type 1. A small part of the extreme northeastern part of the watershed is Late Oligocene to Middle Miocene Unit age, ash-flow tuff rock type 1 and Basalt Rock type 2. The small southeastern part of the watershed is Quaternary Unit age, alluvium rock type 2.



West Ditch-Sevier River Watershed Geology

Figure 2.5.a West Ditch Watershed Geology



<u>S</u>時



Hydrologic Soil Group—Panguitch Area, Parts of Garfield, Iron, Kane, and Piute Counties, Utah (West Ditch-Sevier River Hydrologic Soil Group)





Natural Resources Conservation Service Web Soil Survey National Cooperative Soil Survey 8/14/2019 Page 2 of 5

Hydrologic Soil Group

Г

Map unit symbol	Map unit name	Rating	Acres in AOI	Percent of AOI
8	Badland-Cannonville- Rock outcrop complex, 30 to 50 percent slopes		141.9	1.3%
19	Bruman loam, 2 to 5 percent slopes	В	116.7	1.1%
20	Bruman gravelly loam, 2 to 10 percent slopes	В	233.8	2.1%
23	Bruman very cobbly loam, 5 to 30 percent slopes	В	40.1	0.4%
34	Circleville-Rock outcrop complex, 25 to 60 percent slopes	С	304.9	2.8%
39	Comodore-Rock outcrop complex, 15 to 40 percent slopes	D	991.4	9.0%
48	Evanston very cobbly loam, 4 to 25 percent slopes	В	19.3	0.2%
55	Greenhalgh silt loam, 2 to 5 percent slopes	В	402.4	3.6%
56	Grimm sandy loam, 1 to 5 percent slopes	A	492.0	4.5%
69	lpson cobbly loam, 8 to 25 percent slopes	В	11.2	0.1%
70	Ipson very cobbly loam, 25 to 60 percent slopes	В	202.5	1.8%
72	Jodero loam, 1 to 2 percent slopes	В	111.2	1.0%
97	Neto very fine sandy loam, wet, 0 to 2 percent slopes	A	58.1	0.5%
98	Notter loam, 1 to 4 percent slopes	С	513.9	4.7%
100	Notter loam, thick surface, 4 to 8 percent slopes	С	476.3	4.3%
101	Notter gravelly coarse sandy loam, 2 to 8 percent slopes	В	2,319.0	
103	Notter very cobbly loam, 4 to 25 percent slopes	В	269.4	2.4%



Natural Resources Conservation Service Web Soil Survey National Cooperative Soil Survey 8/14/2019 Page 3 of 5 Hydrologic Soil Group—Panguitch Area, Parts of Garfield, Iron, Kane, and Piute Counties, Utah

West Ditch-Sevier River Hydrologic Soil Group

Map unit symbol	Map unit name	Rating	Acres in AOI	Percent of AOI	
113	Plite sandy loam, 2 to 8 percent slopes	A	203.7	1.8%	
132	Shupert silty clay loam, wet, 0 to 1 percent slopes	С	65.9	0.6%	
141	Tebbs sandy loam, 2 to 5 percent slopes	A	1,192.9	10.8%	
142	Tebbs loam, 1 to 2 percent slopes	В	1,245.7	11.3%	
146	Tridell loam, 2 to 4 percent slopes	В	31.3	0.3%	
148	Tridell cobbly loam, 4 to 25 percent slopes	В	855.9	7.8%	
154	Villy family silty clay loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes	C/D	663.6	6.0%	
155	Waltershow extremely cobbly loam, 8 to 40 percent slopes	С	57.8	0.5%	
174	Water		4.1	0.0%	
175	Pits, gravel		9.3	0.1%	
Totals for Area of Interest			11,034.4	100.0%	

Natural Resources Conservation Service Web Soil Survey National Cooperative Soil Survey 8/14/2019 Page 4 of 5 Hydrologic Soil Group—Panguitch Area, Parts of Garfield, Iron, Kane, and Piute Counties, Utah

West Ditch-Sevier River Hydrologic Soil Group

Description

Hydrologic soil groups are based on estimates of runoff potential. Soils are assigned to one of four groups according to the rate of water infiltration when the soils are not protected by vegetation, are thoroughly wet, and receive precipitation from long-duration storms.

The soils in the United States are assigned to four groups (A, B, C, and D) and three dual classes (A/D, B/D, and C/D). The groups are defined as follows:

Group A. Soils having a high infiltration rate (low runoff potential) when thoroughly wet. These consist mainly of deep, well drained to excessively drained sands or gravelly sands. These soils have a high rate of water transmission.

Group B. Soils having a moderate infiltration rate when thoroughly wet. These consist chiefly of moderately deep or deep, moderately well drained or well drained soils that have moderately fine texture to moderately coarse texture. These soils have a moderate rate of water transmission.

Group C. Soils having a slow infiltration rate when thoroughly wet. These consist chiefly of soils having a layer that impedes the downward movement of water or soils of moderately fine texture or fine texture. These soils have a slow rate of water transmission.

Group D. Soils having a very slow infiltration rate (high runoff potential) when thoroughly wet. These consist chiefly of clays that have a high shrink-swell potential, soils that have a high water table, soils that have a claypan or clay layer at or near the surface, and soils that are shallow over nearly impervious material. These soils have a very slow rate of water transmission.

If a soil is assigned to a dual hydrologic group (A/D, B/D, or C/D), the first letter is for drained areas and the second is for undrained areas. Only the soils that in their natural condition are in group D are assigned to dual classes.

Rating Options

Aggregation Method: Dominant Condition Component Percent Cutoff: None Specified Tie-break Rule: Higher



Natural Resources Conservation Service Web Soil Survey National Cooperative Soil Survey 8/14/2019 Page 5 of 5 The Hydrologic soil group map shows that 1945 acres are in Group A, which have a high infiltration rate (low runoff potential). The majority of the watershed (5859 acres) is in Group B, which has good permeability.

Those soils in Group C (1361 acres) have a slow infiltration rate when they are thoroughly wet, occur where there is a higher water table, and are finer textured soils. These soils are on the valley floor, where it is flat so they don't cause a large runoff problem.

On the western side of the watershed there are 991 acres of soil in Hydrologic Group D, they have a very slow infiltration rate (high runoff potential) when thoroughly wet. There is a restrictive layer on these soils in the watershed that is less than 33 centimeters, and according to the local NRCS soil scientist, this layer is like a "sidewalk".

On the eastern side of the watershed there are 664 acres in Hydrologic Group C/D are included in Group C for drained areas and Group D for undrained areas.

Irrigation runoff is probably the biggest contributor of water back to the Sevier river in the watershed.





Drainage Class—Panguitch Area, Parts of Garfield, Iron, Kane, and Piute Counties, Utah (West Ditch-Sevier River Drainage Class)



Natural Resources Conservation Service Web Soil Survey National Cooperative Soil Survey 8/14/2019 Page 2 of 4

Drainage Class

Ē

Map unit symbol	Map unit name	Rating	Acres in AOI	Percent of AOI
8	Badland-Cannonville- Rock outcrop complex, 30 to 50 percent slopes		141.9	1.3%
19	Bruman loam, 2 to 5 percent slopes	Well drained	116.7	1.1%
20	Bruman gravelly loam, 2 to 10 percent slopes	Well drained	233.8	2.1%
23	Bruman very cobbly loam, 5 to 30 percent slopes	Well drained	40.1	0.4%
34	Circleville-Rock outcrop complex, 25 to 60 percent slopes	Well drained	304.9	2.8%
39	Comodore-Rock outcrop complex, 15 to 40 percent slopes	Somewhat excessively drained	991.4	9.0%
48	Evanston very cobbly loam, 4 to 25 percent slopes	Well drained	19.3	0.2%
55	Greenhalgh silt loam, 2 to 5 percent slopes	Well drained	402.4	3.6%
56	Grimm sandy loam, 1 to 5 percent slopes	Somewhat excessively drained	492.0	4.5%
69	lpson cobbly loam, 8 to 25 percent slopes	Well drained	11.2	0.1%
70	Ipson very cobbly loam, 25 to 60 percent slopes	Well drained	202.5	1.8%
72	Jodero loam, 1 to 2 percent slopes	Well drained	111.2	1.0%
97	Neto very fine sandy loam, wet, 0 to 2 percent slopes	Somewhat poorly drained	58.1	0.5%
98	Notter loam, 1 to 4 percent slopes	Well drained	513.9	4.7%
100	Notter loam, thick surface, 4 to 8 percent slopes	Well drained	476.3	4.3%
101	Notter gravelly coarse sandy loam, 2 to 8 percent slopes	Well drained	2,319.0	21.0%
103	Notter very cobbly loam, 4 to 25 percent slopes	Well drained	269.4	2.4%

Drainage Class-Panguitch Area, Parts of Garfield, Iron, Kane, and Piute Counties, Utah

West Ditch-Sevier River Drainage Class

Map unit symbol	Map unit name	Rating	Acres in AOI	Percent of AOI	
113	Plite sandy loam, 2 to 8 percent slopes	Somewhat excessively drained	203.7	1.8%	
132	Shupert silty clay loam, wet, 0 to 1 percent slopes	Somewhat poorly drained	65.9	0.6%	
141	Tebbs sandy loam, 2 to 5 percent slopes	Well drained	1,192.9	10.8%	
142	Tebbs loam, 1 to 2 percent slopes	Well drained	1,245.7	11.3%	
146	Tridell loam, 2 to 4 percent slopes	Well drained	31.3	0.3%	
148	Tridell cobbly loam, 4 to 25 percent slopes	Well drained	855.9	7.8%	
154	Villy family silty clay loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes	Poorly drained	663.6	6.0%	
155	Waltershow extremely cobbly loam, 8 to 40 percent slopes	Well drained	57.8	0.5%	
174	Water		4.1	0.0%	
175	Pits, gravel		9.3	0.1%	
Totals for Area of Interest			11,034.4	100.0%	

Description

"Drainage class (natural)" refers to the frequency and duration of wet periods under conditions similar to those under which the soil formed. Alterations of the water regime by human activities, either through drainage or irrigation, are not a consideration unless they have significantly changed the morphology of the soil. Seven classes of natural soil drainage are recognized-excessively drained, somewhat excessively drained, well drained, moderately well drained, somewhat poorly drained, poorly drained, and very poorly drained. These classes are defined in the "Soil Survey Manual."

Rating Options

Aggregation Method: Dominant Condition

Component Percent Cutoff: None Specified

Tie-break Rule: Higher



Natural Resources Conservation Service Web Soil Survey National Cooperative Soil Survey 8/14/2019 Page 4 of 4 The drainage class map and data show that this watershed is well drained for the most part. The majority of these soils in the watershed are well drained, only 124 acres are somewhat poorly drained, 664 acres are poorly drained, and 1687 acres somewhat excessively drained out of 11,034 total acres.

The resource concerns with regards to the poorly drained riparian area is to keep it vegetated and protected so that the soils will be stabilized.

United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 2014. Web Soil Survey. <u>http://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/app/</u>

2.6 Drainage Network

The watershed lies in the Wasatch Plateau, the furthest west subset of the Colorado Plateau; however, many consider it transitory to the Basin and Range Provence.



Miles

4

West Ditch-Sevier River Watershed Streams & Lakes

Legend



Figure 2.6.a Lakes & Streams (Flow Network)



West Ditch-Sevier River Watershed National Wetland Inventory

Figure 2.6.b National Wetland Inventory

2.7 Land Cover and Land Use



West Ditch-Sevier River Watershed Land Cover/Land Use

Figure 2.7.a Land Cover and Use

The predominant land use in the watershed is pasture and alfalfa hay production. Livestock grazing also occurs on the shrublands and forested areas.

2.8 Socioeconomic Conditions

Paleoindians (12,000-5,000 B.C.) were the first inhabitants to roam the land within the East Bench-Sevier River Watershed. Remains and artifacts from this culture can be found within the watershed. Evidence suggests that these Indians traveled in small groups, depending on large game and to some degree, small game and fish as a food source. However, there is no evidence to suggest that this group participated in any form of agriculture (Hinton, 1997).

Archaic people entered the area about 9000 B.C. and migrated with the seasons, utilizing berries, seeds, badger, beaver, deer, sheep, small rodents and different types of vegetation as food. The highly mobile Archaic people were more advanced than their predecessors, utilizing animal bones for needles and constructing clothing, footwear and shelter. Most remnants of this population disappeared around 1500 B.C.

Fremont Indians lived along the Sevier River from about 800 to 1200 A.D. Within the area, the Fremont Cultures were the first to have a strong agricultural base, growing such crops as beans, corn, and squash. Distinctive pictographs of triangular-shaped humans, wearing extravagant necklaces and clothing alongside pictographs of deer, sheep, rattlesnakes and other animals they may have harvested, suggest this group placed importance on big game harvest. The Fremont disappeared from the basin between 1200 and 1300 A.D, possibly fleeing because of drought or just evolving into other tribes within the area.

The Numic people composed of the Ute and Southern Piute Indians made the area their home from 1300 A.D. to present. Both Utes and Piutes took advantage of what the land had to offer by hunting a lot of small game, including rodents, rabbits, squirrels, prairie dogs, and beaver. Trout from the river supplemented a large portion of their diet, while pinenuts were gathered and stored for use in winter months.

In the 1500's Spanish conquistadors began to visit areas within the southwestern United States, and most likely the Upper Sevier River basin. Spanish explorers and traders introduced horses to the Ute Indians, making big game easier to obtain. In addition, Spanish traders kidnapped Ute women and children and sold them into slavery back in the New Mexico Territory. In turn, Ute Indians kidnapped Paiute Indians, creating hostile conditions within the basin.

The greatest force in non-Indian settlement of the Sevier River drainage was Mormon Church colonization.

Mormon settlement along the Sevier River drainage during the late 1840's to early 1860's was based on agriculture, with dairy and open-range beef cattle within co-operative herds. From the early 1850's to mid-1870's dairy and open cattle ranging practices were disrupted by Indian conflicts and settlers lost considerable livestock.

Cattle numbers remained low until the late 1860's and early 1870's when settlers realized the profits available within the cattle industry. Railroad transportation arrival in 1869 heralded an era of rapid expansion within the cattle industry and prior community co-operative holdings were superseded by individual holdings.

Areas within the basin continue to be shaped by agriculture and livestock industries today, and many families continue to make a living in the same manner as their ancestors.

The East Bench Sevier River Watershed is important to the city of Panguitch and other local communities for commodity production as well as for recreational opportunities. People from urban areas such as the Wasatch Front (Salt Lake City area) and Las Vegas use the area mainly for recreation,

while livestock grazing is among one of the oldest land uses in the region, contributing important cultural and social values to the area. Tourism is the number one industry in the watershed area and agriculture is number two. The Mean Adjusted Gross Income (MAGI) for Panguitch City is \$39,617.

2.9 Other

There is no digital soil survey information for the higher elevation portions of the watershed, it is located on the Dixie National Forest and no digital data is available there.

3.0 Hydrologic and Water Quality Characterization

3.1 Available Data and Resources

The headwaters of the Upper Sevier River primarily originate from the high Markagunt Plateau and are formed by the confluence of Asay and Mammoth Creeks near the town of Hatch. From there the river flows generally north through the Panguitch Valley, through Circleville Canyon and into Circleville Valley where it is fully utilized for irrigation. Inflows to Piute Reservoir are primarily composed of flow from the East Fork Sevier River and recharge in the channel of the Sevier River.

Water quality is one of the most central issues in the management of natural systems in the 21st century. Adequate quantity and quality of water for endangered fish and other species, and for human consumption and use has been mandated under the Clean Water Act (CWA), Endangered Species Act (ESA) and numerous state and federal agency plans. Water quality is a major focus under the Upper Sevier Management Plan. Those areas where water quality standards are not being met, as well as that area where current conditions accelerate erosion and habitat degradation were given the highest ratings, and will continue to receive a great deal of focus in this plan.

Individual categories rated:

- Summer home development and associated impacts (i.e., ground/surface water contamination, erosion, recreation, etc.)
- Accelerated erosion, grazing management, recreation use, roads
- TMDL listed and potentially listed water bodies due to nutrients, sediment, phosphorous, habitat alteration, or temperature

The main stem of the Sevier River is currently listed as impaired by the Department of Water Quality, Division of Water Quality, for high levels of phosphorous, sediment and habitat alteration (2004, Utah Dept. of Environmental Quality). Excessive phosphorus causes an increase in algae growth, thereby decreasing the dissolved oxygen available for cold water fish species, while high levels of sediment from erosion impairs fish habitat and their ability to spawn.

Figure 3.1.a East Bench and West Ditch Sub-Watersheds



3.1.1 Available Resources of Information Compiled by Others

Flow data is available from the USGS at two locations in the larger watershed.

The Utah Department of Natural Resources completed a water study in 1993.

The Utah Division of Water Quality provides water chemistry, Biological and physical data. A TMDL was also developed for the larger Upper Sevier Watershed.

The local workgroup completed a Watershed Plan.

3.1.2 Gaging Stations

istoric Data	
USGS 10174500 SEVIER RIVER AT HATCH, UT	October 1, 1986 to current
UT	October 1, 2007 to current
USGS 10183500 SEVIER RIVER NEAR KINGSTON,	October 1, 1986 to August 21, 2019 and

Н

USGS 10180000 SEVIER RIVER NEAR CIRCLEVILLE,	May 10,1912 to September29, 1995
UT	

3.1.3 Surface and Groundwater Quality Sampling Sites

Table 3.1.1 Utah Division of Water Quality monitoring locations

4947780	Sevier R @ Partridge Property (UT09ST-734)
4949640	SEVIER R @ SANFORD ROAD XING
4949642	Sevier R @ Roundy Property (UT09ST-750)
4949670	SEVIER R @ PANGUITCH AIRPORT RD XING
4949710	Sevier R bl USU Farm @ Sandwash Rd Xing

A TMDL for the Upper Sevier Watershed was developed in 2004. Water quality standards are established to maintain or improve existing water quality and protect the beneficial use of each water body. The designated use of a body of water is based on goals adopted by the state to protect public health or welfare, enhance water quality, and protect its assigned beneficial uses. Numeric standards and criteria are science-based and incorporate the most recent understanding of human health, healthy ecosystem behavior, and response to pollutants. Narrative standards protect water quality from pollutants that are not suited for numeric criteria or haven't developed criteria so far. Pollution

indicators are used in combination with standards to evaluate parameters that are not directly harmful (e.g. phosphorus) but contribute to a response and condition that can degrade water quality (e.g. algal blooms).

Defining a water quality standard for nutrients can be complex due to interactions that produce varying responses to nutrient inputs. In most situations, degradation occurs through a cascading effect that begins with high nutrient concentrations followed by impacts on algae, dissolved oxygen, and ultimately aquatic communities (i.e. animals and plants). Nutrient concentrations can be a particular concern where a transition occurs from moving water (e.g. rivers) to an impounded water body (e.g. lakes) due to a change in reaeration and mixing. Aesthetic values should also be considered for waters that have a designated recreational use, such as the Upper Sevier River.

Utah does not yet have numeric nutrient criteria, but the state is in the process of developing them. Screening criteria for total phosphorus are currently used until water quality standards (i.e. numeric criteria) are in place. The screening criteria (not to be considered binding water quality criteria) were developed during the 2008 303(d) listing cycle to determine if an assessment unit needed further study to determine impairment. Any water body with a mean total phosphorus concentration greater than 0.06 milligrams per liter (mg/L), and more than 10 percent of samples, exceed the 0.05 mg/L pollution indicator level is designated as one that needs further study (Toole 2010).

3.1.4 Biological Monitoring

An extensive survey using the Stream Visualization Assessment Protocol or SVAP (USDA, 1998) was completed in October of 2002 on a total of 65 stream miles on the Upper Sevier River. In addition to SVAP additional erosion information was derived using the Streambank Erosion Condition Index or SECI (USDA). SECI is an erosion hazard index used to estimate bank erosion in combination with simple measurements such as bank height, length, and soil bulk density. In addition waterbody assessments were developed by the Watershed Steering Committee in 1997. These assessments rated the current conditions and feasibility for restoration and recommended BMPs for improvement of water quality and habitat.

Two components of the SVAP address the biology of the system. "Fish Cover" measures availability of physical habitat for fish. The potential for the maintenance of a healthy fish community and its ability to recover from disturbance is dependent on the variety and abundance of suitable habitat and cover available. The average score for fish cover for reaches on the Sevier River was 3.7 (Poor). This average reflects a typical stream reach which would have 3-4 types of fish cover, and for reaches on the Sevier River these would typically include riffles, undercut banks, boulder/ cobbles, and occasional deep pools and large woody debris. Similar to fish cover, "invertebrate habitat" measures the number of substrates available for insects and invertebrates to occupy. Substrate refers to the stream bottom, woody debris, or other surfaces on which invertebrates can live. Optimal conditions include a variety of substrate types within a relatively small area of the stream. The average score for insect habitat for reaches on the

Sevier River was 4.3 (Poor), which would translate to approximately 3 types of substrate, comprised primarily of coarse gravel, cobble, and undercut banks.

3.1.5 NRCS and Partner Sampling. During the 1-year assessment period, could ad hoc water quality monitoring be undertaken? <u>YES</u>

The Division of Water Quality does an intensive monitoring rotation throughout the state. The Sevier River is scheduled for intensive monitoring starting in ecober 2019 and running through September 2020. Additional sites and timeline can be added if necessary.

3.2 Runoff and Streamflow Hydrology and Irrigation

3.2.1 Methods Used in Analysis

3.2.2 Runoff and Streamflow Generation Processes

The Sevier River is one of the most utilized rivers in the United States. Diversion of water in the basin began in the early 1900's and continues today. Water is diverted at several points along the main stem, East Fork, and several of the smaller tributaries. Water is stored and released at Panguitch Lake, Tropic Reservoir and Otter Creek Reservoir.

Flow regimes in the Sevier River and the East Fork have changed dramatically during the past century due to diversions and water storage in reservoirs. Water is usually diverted and released from reservoirs during the irrigation months. The timing and magnitude of runoff events has been affected by reservoirs, diversions, road construction and urban development.

High rankings were given to those areas where flow regimes have been altered from historic conditions and potential for restoration exists and/or to those areas that have documented water quality issues.

Individual categories rated:

- Dewatering and altered flow regimes
- Releases from Otter Creek Reservoir may be causing bank erosion along East Fork Sevier River
- Diversion of water from Castle Creek to Deer Creek has caused severe channel degradation
- Diversions along the Sevier River may be affecting sediment transport capacity and channel equilibrium
- Loss of riparian vegetation has resulted in reduced bank storage and summer stream flows

Dominant hillslope processes include sheetwash and shallow rill erosion. Accelerated erosion occurs in areas where vegetation conditions have been removed from historic conditions. Historic grazing practices, urban development, fire suppression, road development and increased recreational use have contributed to accelerated erosion in upland areas. High rankings were used for those areas and activities having most impact within the particular sub-watershed.

Individual categories rated:

- Accelerated erosion on high elevation meadows
- Accelerated erosion in pinyon-juniper and sagebrush stands
- Accelerated erosion associated with urban development
- Accelerated erosion associated with roads
- Rill and gully erosion on hillslopes
- Accelerated erosion associated with illegal ATV use

The Upper Sevier Basin contains a wide variety of stream channel types, and are categorized based on Rosgen, 1996. Many channels in the watershed have incised (downcut) sometime in the past, but are evolving back to their previous morphology. Bank erosion has accelerated in portions of the watershed, resulting in higher width/depth ratios and headcuts on upstream ends.

Individual categories rated:

- Active channel adjustments (vertical or lateral)
- Accelerated bank erosion
- Channelization

3.2.3 Precipitation-Runoff Budget

Precipitation ranges from 5 inches in lower elevations (~5,000 to ~6,500 ft) to more than 40 inches per year near Brian Head Peak (11,307 ft) - one of the highest points in the watershed. Although heavy thunderstorms are common throughout summer months, causing increased overland erosion, most of the annual precipitation falls as snow during winter months. Information regarding annual average maximum/minimum temperatures, annual average snowfall and precipitation is available through the Western Regional Climate Center for seven points within the watershed.

3.2.4 Spatial Dist 🖽 Ition of runoff

3.2.5 Temporal Distribution of Streamflow

Available flow data for the Upper Sevier River are summarized in the figure below which shows the mean monthly discharge for two stations on the river located near Hatch in the upper watershed and the lower river in Circleville Canyon. With the exception of the irrigation season, flows are greater at the downstream station near Circleville. An average of approximately 68,400 acre-ft of water is diverted from the river and its tributaries in the Panguitch Valley during the irrigation season. According to a study by the Utah Department of Natural Resources (1993), of this irrigation water, approximately 33% or 22,950 acre-feet is consumed by crops. The remaining irrigation water discharges to streams and groundwater as tailwater, valley fill recharge and leakage from canals (11,110 acre-ft, 21,500 acre-ft, and 12,840 acre-ft, respectively). With the exception of a small stream section near Hatch, the length of the Upper Sevier River through Panguitch Valley is a gaining stream. The river is heavily influenced by irrigation diversions particularly near Panguitch, where several complete diversions are operated.





3.3 Water Quality Co 👼 itions in the Watershed

Source: United States Geological Survey.

Water Quality Standards

This section addresses water quality impairments for streams and lakes within the Upper Sevier Basin through the establishment of Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs) for pollutants and sources of concern. Segments of the Upper Sevier River have been listed on the 2002 303(d) list of impaired waters. The State of Utah has designated these waterbodies as coldwater (3A) fisheries and impairment of this designated use exists due to a number of pollutants and sources, including habitat alteration, total phosphorus (TP), and total suspended sediments (TSS) and low dissolved oxygen (DO). Upper Sevier River waterbodies and their associated impairment are listed in Table 5-1. The primary sources are habitat degradation from agricultural activities, nonpoint source pollution from rangeland, summer home development, septic systems, recreational activities, and urban runoff.

Impaired Waters

Utah's Year 2002 303(d) list identifies three segments of the Sevier River as being impaired due to water quality numeric exceedences. Impaired waterbodies and pollutants of concern are listed below.

Waterbody	Waterbody ID	Impaired Use	Cause of Impairment
Sevier River and tributaries from Circleville Irrigation Diversion	UT16030001-005	ЗА	Habitat Alteration,
upstream to Horse Valley Diversion			TSS, TP
Sevier River and tributaries from Horse Valley Diversion upstream to Long		24	Habitat Alteration,
Canal Diversion excluding Panguitch Creek, Bear Creek, and their tributaries	S 0116030001-007	3A	TSS, TP
Sevier River and tributaries from Long	UT16030001-012		Habitat Alteration,
Canal to Mammoth Creek confluence		3A	TSS, TP

Table 3.3.1 Impaired waterbodies and pollutants of concern (2002 303d List).

Table 3.3.2 Utah Water Quality 🔁 ria for Class 3A Waters

Target Parameters

Criterion Maximum Concentration

Total Suspended Solids*	35 mg/L
Total Phosphorus*	
-Streams	0.05 mg/l
-Lakes	0.025 mg/l
Dissolved Oxygen	
-Lakes	4.0 mg/l

*Pollution Indicators. TSS criterion no longer part of the State of Utah Water Quality Standards.

The listings are based on an intensive water quality survey completed in 1996-1997 by DWQ. The beneficial uses, as designated by the State of Utah (DWQ, 2000b), for the Sevier River are:

2B- Protected for secondary contact recreation such as boating, wading, or similar uses;

3A - Protected for cold water species of game fish and other coldwater aquatic life, including the necessary aquatic organisms in their food chain.

3C - Protected for nongame fish and other aquatic life, including the necessary aquatic organisms in their food chain;

3D - Protected for waterfowl, shore birds and other water-oriented wildlife not included in Classes 3A, 3B, or 3C, including the necessary aquatic organisms in their food chain

4 - Protected for agricultural uses including irrigation of crops and stock watering

The table below lists the monitoring stations and the number and percentage of samples exceeding the criterion of 0.05 mg/l for total phosphorus. This information was compiled from data collected during 1996-97.

STORET	Location	Number Exceeding Criterion	Number of Samples	% Exceeded	Mean Conc. (mg/l)	Support
4949450	Circleville Canyon	11	20	55 %	.090	Non-Support
4949640	Sevier above Sanford Ck.	7	16	44 %	.079	Non-Support
4949660	Sevier R. East of Panguitch	4	14	29 %	.075	Non-Support
4949630	Sevier R. at U12 Crossing	6	18	33 %	.063	Non-Support

 Table 8. Exceedence report for total phosphorus for selected stations 1996-97.

3.3.1 General Concentrations and Loads of Major Constituents and How They Vary

3.3.2 Sediment

The average Biotic Condition Index for the site near Circleville (STORET # 4949450) was 65.5 or "Poor" rating, indicating tolerance to sediment and nutrients which supports the water chemistry data. Impairment based on "Habitat Alteration" was determined by the Upper Sevier Watershed Steering Committee as the primary cause of in-stream impairment and potential sources of sediment from streambank erosion. Sedimentation and siltation affect fisheries and aquatic resources by covering and eliminating gravel spawning beds, covering fish eggs (which reduces oxygen supply and survival of eggs and fry), and reducing the amount of habitat available for aquatic invertebrates that are an important part of the food chain.

Land erosion in the Sevier River watershed was estimated using the Universal Soil Loss Equation (USLE). The USLE (Wischmeier and Smith, 1978) is the most common and best known method to estimate gross annual soil loss from upland erosion. The USLE is an index method having factors that represent how climate, soil, topography, and land use affect soil erosion caused by raindrop impact and surface runoff.

Waterbody	Current Load	Up-stream Reduction	Point Source	Septic Systems	Grazing/ Animal Waste	Streambank Erosion	Upland Erosion	Loading Capacity
Sevier River from Long Canal to Mammoth Creek	1871	382			116	63		1528
Sevier River from Horse Valley Diversion to Long Canal Diversion	3999	275			841	403	402	2078

Figure 3.3.a Estimated load reduction for impaired river segments (units in kg/yr).

* Currently no load reduction is recommended due to insufficient data. The load reductions are therefore distributed among other sources of nonpoint sources.

Estimated load reduction for impaired river segments (units in kg/yr).

Rather than explicitly representing the fundamental processes of detachment, deposition, and transport by rainfall and runoff, the USLE represents the effects of these processes on soil loss. These influences are described in the USLE with the equation:

A = (R) (K) (LS) (C) (P)

Where, A is estimated soil loss in tons/ hectare for a given storm or period; R is a rainfall energy factor; K is a soil erodibility factor; LS is a slope-length, slope steepness factor; C is vegetative cover factor; and P is a conservation practice factor. Bear Creek sediment load using the USLE = 27933 Mt/yr.

The USLE factor for the Bear Creek watershed was estimated based on available GIS data. The 30-meter digital elevation model was used to derive slope-length and slope steepness and the NRCS STATSGO soils database was used to derive the soil erodibility factor.

3.3.3 Nutrients

Total Phosphorus

Mean total phosphorus concentrations and loads were calculated by sorting data by month and obtaining monthly averages. The figure below indicates that loads are highest during April and May, which corresponds with the spring runoff. The sharp drop in loading in the middle and lower river during June may reflect the effect of irrigation diversions reducing flows and concentrations due to land application. Loads remain low in the upper river the remainder of the year while higher loads in the lower river reflect irrigation return flows and streambank erosion from higher fall stream flows. In addition, levels may increase in downstream reaches as a result of over-wintering of livestock in the Panguitch Valley.

Figure 3.3.b Mean TP loads for selected stations on 📴 Upper Sevier River



Annual loads were calculated by averaging monthly loads and multiplying by 365 days in the year. In general, loads increase with downstream reach. The exception to this trend occurs at 4949630 (Sevier River at U12 Crossing) in June which may be due to higher flows in this reach which is located upstream from major irrigation diversions. The site 4949660 (Sevier River East of Panguitch) is located below a major diversion which accounts for the lower TP loads observed at this site.



The Sevier River East of Panguitch Fairgrounds (site 4949720) is located in approximately the middle of the West Ditch Watershed. Total Phosphorus exceeds the standard 3 out of 21 samples from 2002 thru 2004 or 14% of the time. Current data for this site will be collected during the next intensive monitoring



The Sevier River at Sanford Road Xing (site 4949640) located downstream of both the East Bench and the West Ditch Watersheds. Total Phosphorus exceeds the standard 10 out of 20 samples since 2013 or 50% of the time.





Dissolved phosphorus appears in surface waters usually from sources of organic nutrient enrichment such as a wastewater treatment plant, animal feedlot waste, or other point source discharge.

Examination of ratios of dissolved to total phosphorus concentrations can be used to indicate whether sources are predominantly organic in nature as is the case when high ratios are found in surface water. Ratios were calculated for selected sites on the Upper Sevier River.



Figure 3.3.d Dissolved and total phosphorus ratios

Ratios of DP to TP were low (0.24) in the lower river suggesting that TP was not readily bioavailable but adhered to soil or sediment particles. Conversely ratios in Mammoth and Asay Creeks were high (0.65) indicating organic enrichment related to sources such as the Mammoth Fish Hatchery, grazing and high numbers of septic systems from home development in both the Asay and Mammoth creek watersheds.

In addition to dissolved to total phosphorus ratios, correlations between TP and Total Suspended Solids (TSS) were graphed. While the relationship between TSS and TP is not particularly strong for the entire dataset (R^2 = .45) the majority of high phosphorus measurements (> 0.05 mg/l) occur when TSS is also high.

Figure 3.3.e Correlation of ____ to TSS at station 4949450



In addition, regression analysis of the relationship between TP load and TSS load provides stronger evidence that high loads of TP are flow related and associated with high sediment loads.

Figure 3.3.f Regression analysis of TP and TSS Loads for Station 4949450



TSS

Mean total suspended solids (TSS) concentrations and loads were calculated by sorting data by month and obtaining monthly averages. The figure below indicates that loads are highest during April and May,

which corresponds with the spring runoff. The sharp drop in loading in the middle and lower river during June may reflect the effect of irrigation diversions reducing flows and concentrations due to land application of river water. Loads remain low in the upper river the remainder of the year while higher loads in the lower river reflect irrigation return flows and streambank erosion from higher fall stream flows.



Figure 3.3.g TSS loads at selected stations on the Upper Sevier River

As is typical of stream with snowmelt dominated hydrograph, TSS values generally peak in the months of spring runoff as tributary inflows and bank erosion from high flows contribute sediment to the system. A notable exception can be seen in May values, where irrigation withdrawals not only affect discharge but the TSS load. Peaks in TSS load early in March and April may be a result of low elevation snowmelt mobilizing sediment from valley bottoms and foothill rangeland. The lower river (represented by 4949640 and 4949450), exhibits an increase in TSS load as stream flows increase in the lower river after irrigation season. In this situation, streambank and in- channel erosion is most likely occurring from increased flows from groundwater recharge and fall storm events. However, analysis of the correlation between flow and TSS concentrations for the period of record at 4949450 did not show TSS to be well correlated to flow ($R^2 = .28$)

TSS Concentrations at 4949630 were highly variable from year to year. Data from 1996-7 averaged 46 mg/l while 2001-2 data averaged 1008 mg/l TSS (with several dates exceeding 1500 mg/l). It is not recommended that TMDLs be based on TSS data for waters in this basin. TSS doesn't actually reflect the overall sediment load present in the stream and therefore, TMDL endpoints related to TSS will not be established in this study.



Figure 3.3.h Estimated ment loads from streambank erosion

Relative increases in sediment as TSS as measured in in-stream loads from water quality data mirror the increases predicted during the survey using SECI protocol. While the SECI estimates the total amount of sediment delivered to the stream from the volume of material being lost each year, TSS only measures the suspended fraction of sediment transported in the stream. The estimates of streambank erosion would be expected to be higher since not all of the material entering a stream would be suspended in the water column but comprise bed load as well. Since the SECI survey was incomplete and did not include other tributaries we would expect the sediment contribution to be much greater. The site at SR at U12 crossing exhibited extremely high TSS values in the 2001-02 intensive sampling season which is responsible for the spike in TSS load at this site. In addition, numerous irrigation withdrawals in the area upstream of Panguitch may regulate the amount of TSS in the river since in some cases the withdrawals are complete dry dams and the water is flooded onto fields to the east of the Valley. The monitoring station 4949660 (Sevier River East of Panguitch) is one such site, located below a complete diversion which had resulted in lower observed stream flow and loads for both TSS and phosphorus.

3.3.4 Other

Pollution Assessment

Natural Sources

Within natural forested landscapes mass erosion such as geological creep, and to a lesser degree slump and debris avalanches, are the dominant upland erosion processes. After intense wildfire, surface erosion is a dominant factor. In valley bottoms, stream channel erosion, including both bed and bank erosion, may deposit materials into the channel, where transport, storage and deposition may influence stream integrity. Prior to European settlement, stream channels in this watershed were most likely in dynamic equilibrium, and experienced natural erosion processes. Stream riparian habitat most likely consisted of mosaics of thick willows and late seral grasses. Cottonwood and willow communities were present at lower elevations along the Sevier River. Expansive and diverse riparian grasses, along with willow and cottonwood, helped reduce sediment influx, maintained coarser stream substrate, contributed to cooler stream temperatures, and supported normal flow regimes. As with sediment, natural sources of nutrients exist in every watershed, derived from parent material, sediment and inputs from organic matter deposited in or near streams. While headwater streams tend to be less productive than lower elevation rivers, historical accounts of the Upper Sevier River watershed suggest streams and lakes in the area were productive and contained abundant fish.

Human Sources

As early settlers moved into the Upper Sevier River Watershed, surface erosion processes have become more prevalent in areas where road constructing, mining, timber harvest and grazing occur. Roads have increased surface and mass erosion rates beyond those associated with natural watershed disturbances. An extensive network of roads constructed in areas such as stream bottoms and un-stable land types has resulted in large scale mass erosion. Like roads, livestock grazing and silviculture can alter the hydrology of a watershed, reducing protective vegetation and infiltration, and increasing the magnitude of runoff events. Grazing and recreation in stream channels and riparian areas reduces the stability of banks and results in erosion of bank materials to the channel and receiving waterbodies. In addition to sources from erosion, nutrient enrichment from livestock waste can result from grazing in the stream channel, flood irrigation of pasture land and runoff from animal feeding operations.

A major concern in the upper watershed tributaries is the concentration of summer home development near streams and lakes. The Human Uses work group for the Upper Sevier Community Watershed Project identified key issues associated with human uses in the watershed. The group estimated approximately 4,163 developed lots in the Strawberry Valley (841), Duck Creek (1450), Swain's Creek (1,107, and Strawberry Point - Zions View (765) subwatersheds, all currently using septic tanks. In the Mammoth Creek watershed they identified approximately 1,114 developed lots in the Ireland Meadows (36), Meadow Lakes Estates (445), Rainbow Meadows (90), and Tommy Creek (194) areas. As development continues to increase, impacts to surface and groundwater from poorly designed, located and installed septic systems may be a potential problem particularly since the claron-limestone and volcanic substrates present from Duck Creek to Panguitch Lake are not suitable and conducive to septic system use. Dispersed recreation associated with these developments, in areas where few or no sanitary facilities exists, may also potentially impact surface and groundwater. While local effects of these developments may occur in surface waters, monitoring data are inadequate to determine loading to tributaries and the effects to the mainstem of the Sevier River is uncertain. In addition, use of tributary flow for irrigation (e.g. Panguitch and Mammoth Creek) may reduce the loading from these sources.

4.0 Resource Analysis and Source Assessment

4.1 Causes of Resource Problems

While there are various point sources located throughout the Upper Sevier watershed that contribute to the phosphorous impairment, the overall purpose of this plan is to help reduce phosphorus concentrations in the watershed by addressing nonpoint source pollution.

Phosphorus loads are highest during April and May, which corresponds with the spring runoff. The sharp drop in loading in the middle and lower river during June may reflect the effect of irrigation diversions reducing flows and concentrations due to land application. Loads remain low in the upper river the remainder of the year while higher loads in the lower river reflect irrigation return flows and streambank erosion from higher fall stream flows. In addition, levels may increase in downstream reaches as a result of over-wintering of livestock in the Panguitch Valley.

Primary mechanisms of phosphorus delivery from cattle to streams include direct deposition in streams and on streambanks and return flows from flooding of pasture utilized for grazing and/or fertilized with manure. In an effort to estimate contributions of total phosphorus from grazing, cattle numbers were obtained from the landowners in the watershed and were divided by subwatershed (Dodds, 2003). The total number of animals in each watershed varies by season as cattle are moved from summer to winter range, as well as into and out of the watershed.

Dissolved phosphorus appears in surface waters usually from sources of organic nutrient enrichment such as a wastewater treatment plant, animal feedlot waste, or other point source discharge.

Nonpoint sources of phosphorus include natural background sources from the weathering of parent material and organic matter delivered to the streams as soil and plant litter. The movement of nutrients such as phosphorus through a watershed is a complex process since plant and algal uptake plays a strong role in the cycling of nutrients. In addition, the nature of the Sevier River watershed is such that water is continually diverted and land applied and returning to the channel via overland flow and shallow groundwater return flows. In the process, phosphorus (as well TSS) loads and concentrations can be reduced when irrigation water from the river is distributed to crops.

4.2 Potential Tools to Use

This watershed plan has identified three main resource concerns linked to degraded water quality in the West Ditch Watershed. These four resource concerns are:

- Grazing management: This could include a combination of timing, duration, and fencing to
 protect streambanks from trampling and limit the introduction of animal waste into canals,
 ditches and streams. Riparian fencing and pasture rotation are appropriate practices to protect
 sensitive areas and allow for controlled access to forage. Off-site watering could be provided for
 cattle that congregate in or near streams or other channels adjacent to pastures.
- 2. Streambank restoration: The re-establishment of woody, deep-rooted vegetation such as willows and sedges is recommended for the majority of the Sevier River from its headwaters to Circleville Canyon. The potential for bank stabilization and erosion control is high since the water table is typically high throughout the year. Practices could include willow pole planting, willow mats, temporary juniper revetments, and other soft bio-engineering techniques. These restoration projects would have to be coupled with grazing management, development of offsite water sources, and permanent or temporary electric fencing to allow for recovery of riparian vegetation. In some cases which were identified during an SVAP, completed for the Upper Sevier TMDL, bank erosion was so severe that the installation of hard structures such as rock barbs or weirs rock may be necessary to direct flow away from re-vegetating stream banks.
- 3. Irrigation efficiency and buffers: In order to reduce the amount of runoff containing sediment and nutrients from field under flood irrigation, it is recommended that irrigation efficiency projects be implemented on fields and pasture adjacent to the Sevier River and its tributaries. Where applicable, vegetative buffers should also be developed to filter nutrients and moderate loss of flood irrigation.

Section one of this plan goes into greater detail regarding how these goals will be achieved, and what potential tools may be used to help each specific resource concern mentioned above.

4.3 Preliminary Analysis to address the Problem With Available Tools

The purpose of this watershed plan is to identify resource concerns related degraded water quality in the West Ditch Watershed. This includes identifying the locations of areas where best management practices are needed, and also identifying the water quality benefit that will be achieved through the implementation of these practices. To do this the Spreadsheet Tool for Estimating Pollutant Load 4.4 (STEPL) was used to calculate current loading, and potential loading reductions.

STEPL employs simple algorithms to calculate nutrient and sediment loads from different land uses and the load reductions that would result from the implementation of various best management practices

(BMPs). It computes watershed surface runoff; nutrient loads, including nitrogen, phosphorus, and 5day biological oxygen demand (BOD5); and sediment delivery based on various land uses and management practices. For each watershed, the annual nutrient loading is calculated based on the runoff volume and the pollutant concentrations in the runoff water as influenced by factors such as the land use distribution and management practices. The annual sediment load (sheet and rill erosion only) is calculated based on the Universal Soil Loss Equation (USLE) and the sediment delivery ratio. The sediment and pollutant load reductions that result from the implementation of BMPs are computed using the known BMP efficiencies.

4.4 Analysis of Treatment and Opportunities

The phosphorous TMDL that was written for the Upper Sevier River breaks the Upper Sevier River into four reaches, and identifies required load reductions for each reach. The West Ditch Watershed is located in the reach between the Horse Valley Diversion and the Long Canal Diversion. The West Ditch Watershed only accounts for 16 percent of this reach. To better calculate the actual load reduction needed within the West Ditch Watershed, it was assumed that only 16% of the required load for this reach should come from the West Ditch Watershed. Table 4.4.1 identifies the load reductions that are required for each pollutant source in the watershed based on 19% of the total load from the Horse Valley Diversion to the Long Canal Diversion.

Reach	Stream Bank Erosion Ibs/year	Grazing/Animal Waste Ibs/year	Irrigation Improvements	Total Load Ibs/year
Sevier River from Horse Valley Diversion to Long Canal Diversion	886.6	1850.2	-	2736.8
Upper Sevier River Located in West Ditch Watershed (STEPL)	141.9	296.0	-	437.9
Load from previously completed projects (STEPL)	42.6	0*	130.6	173.2
Load reductions required for West Ditch Watershed	99.3	296.0	-	395.3

Table 4.4.1 Estimated Load Reduction required by TMDL

*STEPL calculates Stream bank work and fencing together

To assist with the quantification of resource needs, a visual assessment of aerial imagery, as well as windshield surveys were conducted to help obtain an estimate of the number of practices needed, and the location of those practices. Table 4.4.2 shows the results of this survey.

Tuble 1112 TO Ditch Conservation Fractices Summary	Table 4.4.2	West Dit	ch Conserva	tion Practices	Summary
--	--------------------	----------	-------------	----------------	----------------

Parameter	Quantity
Linear feet of river in the present in the watershed	27,000
Linear feet of stream bank already treated	2,000
Linear feet of river requiring treatment	25,000
Number of cattle in watershed	1,555
Number of cattle with access to the river	850
Acres of irrigated farmland	3,340
Acres of improved irrigation practices	1,166
Acres needing irrigation improvements	2,174

STEPL was used to calculate load reduction estimates for the needed practices needed in Table 2. These load reduction estimates show the amount of phosphorous load reductions that could be achieved if all of the Best Management Practices (BMPs) Identified within the watershed were implemented. The load reductions required for the West Ditch Watershed were also calculated, as well as the load reductions that have already been achieved through previous implementation work. As a result of the project work that has already been implemented in the West Ditch Watershed, only 51% of the remaining practices will need to be implemented to help meet the endpoints of the Upper Sevier TMDL.

 Table 4.4.3 Available Load Reductions vs. Required Load reductions

Practice	Quantity	Estimated Load Reduction
Fencing and Stream Bank Stabilization	25,000 linear feet	532.9 lbs/year
Irrigation Improvements	2174 acres	243.5 lbs/year
Total Load Reduction Available		776.4 lbs/year
Total Load Reduction Required		395.3 lbs/year
Percentage of Practices to be Imp	lemented	51%

4.4.1 Current level of Treatment in the Watershed

The NRCS and the Division of Water Quality have been working in the West Ditch Watershed for many years. Over the past several years 2,000 linear feet of stream bank has been restored. This includes the installation of a riparian fence that will help rest the riparian area, and allow riparian vegetation to increase.

In addition to the riparian improvements, the NRCS has been working with producers to install improved irrigation systems. These systems include gated pipe to better control water movement across flooded fields, as well as pressurized irrigation systems, such as sprinkler systems.

With the practices that have been installed an estimated 173.2 lbs/year of phosphorous has already been removed from the system (see table 1). This is approximately 6.3% of the total load reduction required by the Upper Sevier TMDL.

4.4.2 An Analysis of Producers Available and Their Willingness to Participate

Producers in the Upper Sevier Watershed have long been willing to work with state and federal partners to implement conservation practices. One of the reasons that the West Ditch watershed was selected as a National Water Quality Initiative (NWQI) watershed was the demand for funding. Many of the landowners in the watershed have already committed to implement the desired BMPs.

According to FSA records there are9 landowners that have land that is located in an area of concern in the Watershed. Of those 14 landowners, 1 of them has already implemented relevant projects, while an additional 3 landowners have agreed to apply for NWQI or Environmental Quality Improvement Program (EQIP) funding, and 5 landowners have still not been contacted.

4.4.3 Assessment of How Critical Area Treatment is Balanced With Participation to Achieve the Most Effective Prioritization of Implementation

While three of the landowners have agreed to work with the NRCS to implement waters quality projects, the remaining landowners will need to be contacted. The local watershed coordinator is hopeful that many of the remaining landowners will be willing to participate in the NWQI program. All the remaining landowners will be contacted, and hopefully all of the high priority projects will be implemented, as has been the case in previous NWQI watersheds in the Upper Sevier.

4.4.4 Set of Preferred Practices, Locations, Responsible Parties, Costs, and Time Lines Descriptions

The following maps show the irrigated acres along the stream, the potential treatment areas, those that have been restored along the stream, and those that are planned to be restored.



Figure 4.4.a Treatment Areas



Figure 4.4.b Potential Treatment Areas

Table 4	4.4.4	Practice	Ouantities	and	Cost	Estimates	for	West	Ditch	Watershed
			C							

Practice	Cost	Unit	Quantity	Total Cost
Grazing Management Plan (110)	\$4,333.42	ea	9	\$39,000.74
Fence (382)	\$2.05	ft	50,000	\$10,2307.70
Tree/shrub Establishment (612)	\$216.72	ас	70	\$15,170.620
Sprinkler System (442)	\$278.48	ас	2174	\$605,408.80
Stream Bank and Shoreline Protection (580)	\$17.49	ft	50,000	\$874,615.40
Total Cost	\$1,636,503.00			



Dodds, W. (2003). Personal Communication. Upper Sevier Soil Conservation District.

Utah Division of Water Quality (2004). *Upper Sevier River, Total Maximum Daily Load and Water Quality Management Plan.* Retrieved from, https://documents.deq.utah.gov/water-quality/watershed-protection/total-maximum-daily-loads/DWQ-2015-006609.pdf

Utah Division of Water Quality (2004). *Upper Sevier Watershed Management Plan*. Retrieved from, https://deq.utah.gov/legacy/programs/water-quality/watersheds/docs/2015/08Aug/UpperSevier.pdf.

Natural Resource Conservation Service (2019) NRCS Programmatic Cost Share List

Environmental Protection Agency (2018) *User's Guide-Spreadsheet Tool for the Estimation of Pollutant Load (STEPL).* Retrieved from: http://it.tetratech-ffx.com/steplweb/STEPLmain_files/STEPLGuide404.pdf

5.0 Summary and Recommendations

5.1 Water Quality Impairments Description

The water quality impairments to the beneficial use of a cold water fishery is total phosphorus and habitat alteration.

5.2 Goal and Practice Efficiencies Description

509.4 acres of irrigation improvement in the watershed.

5.3 Interim Metrics to Track Progress

The practices for implementation will be 3-fold. Grazing management, streambank restoration, and irrigation water management. Monitoring trends will be evaluated using chemical field measurements at monitoring sites. Measurements will be collected with a calibrated multi-parameter probe and results submitted to the Utah Division of Water Quality (DWQ) cooperative monitoring coordinator. Measurements will include:

- 1. Dissolved oxygen (mg/L and % saturation)
- 2. pH
- 3. Specific conductance (in µS/cm)
- 4. Water Temperature (C)
- 5. Discharge (cfs)

5.4 Locations of Critical Source Areas or Vulnerable Areas Needing Treatment

Map provided in Section 4.4 (Figure 4.4d2) shows the location of critical source areas that need treatment. Section 4, Table 3 shows all estimated load reductions and required load reductions for streambank stabilization, and irrigation improvements.

5.5 Description and Evaluation of Planned Practice Scenarios and Alternatives That Meet the Water Quality Objectives

The planned practice scenarios are grazing management, streambank stabilization and fencing, irrigation water management. The cost estimates are listed in Section 4, Table 4.

5.6 NEPA Documentation

	NRC	-CPA-SS				-
ONRCS		4/2013	A. Client Name: West Di	itch-Sev	rier River Watershed Area	
ENVIRONMENTAL EVALUATION WORKSHEET			B. Conservation Plan ID # (as Program Authority (o)	applical ptional):	Die): East Bench Area M	lan
D. Client's Objective(s) (purpose):			C. Identification # (larm, tract,	field #,	etc as required):	
Implement a fully coordinated approach to reduce erosion on uplands and sedimentation in the Sevier River and its tributaries. Improve water quality (reduce Total P loading) and practice management.	, riparian habitat, irrigation water manage	ment	Agricultural lands in the West Drich W	/atershed	area including crop, pasture, and grazer	ng lands.
E. Need for Action:	H. Alternatives	-				1000
Existing TMDL shows the need to reduce Total Phosphorus from habitat degradation from egricultural activities, and nonpoint source pollution from rangeland.	No Action vill RMS Existing erosion along streambank and	d upland	Alternative 1 v II RMS Progressive Conservation System Alt	emative	Alternative 2 VII RMS	
	areas will persist.		with the implementation of the followin Practices: streambank and showing	9		
			protection, pasture & rangeland mana	agement		
			management, tree and shrub establish	hment,		
			sprinkler system, range planting, and water management.	imgation		
Resource Concern	19					-
In Section **F** below, analyze, record, and address concerns identified through the Resources Inventory process.			MALTINE CONTRACTOR	-		-
(See FOTG Section III - Resource Planning Criteria for guidance). *		12	in the second second			1
F. Resource Concerns and Existing/Benchmark Conditions (Analyze and record the existing/benchmark conditions for each identified concern)	I. Effects of Alternatives No Action		Alternative 1		Alternative 2	-
	Amount Status Description		Amount Status Description	Γ	Amount Status Description	T
	Anount, outras, pescription	H dees	Parlouin, status, pescription	If dees NOT	Anouni, datas, pescription	H does
	(Document both short and long term impacts)	meet PC	(Document both short and long term impects)	meet PC	(Document both short and long term impacts)	meet PC
SUIL FRACIAN				-		
Shoet, Rif & Wind Eresion - Crep	1		1		1	In
Not a Resource Concern.	1	NOT		NOT		NOT
		PC		PC		PC
Sheet, Rill & Wind Erosion - Pasiwe	No Action		Erosion will be addressed to tolerable	D		
Erosion is greater than T on some fields where continuous grazing along the streambank occurs.		NOT	revers by impremented practices.	NOT		NOT
		PC PC		PC		PC meet
Shoet, RII & Wind Erosien - Farmstead						
Not a Hesource Concern.		NOT		NOT		NOT
		PC		PC		PC
Biheel, Rill & Wind Erosion - Associated Ag Land Not a Resource Concern.						
		meet		moet		meet
Shaet Bill & Wind Freeken, Perest	Continued concerns with erosion	PC	Site will become stable without visible	PC		PC
Site is unstable and has visible signs of erosion in heavily grazed areas.	without NRCS assistance.	NOT	signs of erosion with installed	NOT		NOT
		meet	praces.	meet		meet
Sheet Rill & Wind Erssian - Range	Continued concerns with erosion		RHA soil site stability will improve to	T		I TT
Sheet, Rill and Wind erosion is a concern. RHA - Soil & Site Stability Rating is slight to moderate or Rangeland Planned Trend is not positive.	without NRCS assistance.	NOT	slight or moderate with installed practices.	NOT		NOT
		PC		PC		PC
Concentrated Row - Ephomeral Gully Eresion - Crop						
Not a Resource Concern. Ephemeral guilies are not occuring.	-	NOT		NOT		NOT
		maet PC	1	PC		meet PC
Concentrated Plew - Classic Guily Erselen- Crop						П
Not a Resource Concern. Classic guilles are not present.	1	NOT		NOT		NOT
		PC		PC		PC
Concentrated Rew - Classic Guily Erosion - Pasture						
Not a Resource Concern. Classic gullies are not present.	1	NOT		NOT		NOT
		meet PC		PC meet		meet PC
Consentrated Rev - Classic Guily Ermien - Fernateed				tn		
Not a Resource Concern. Classic cullies are not present.	-	NOT		NOT		NOT
		meet		meet		meet
		10		1 -		
Net a Descure Concern Clastic culles are not meand	-					
e tra a remember a sensore, compare guarda ana tras presente.		meet		meet		meet
Connectional Raw, Classic Bully Evalue, Except		PC		PC		PC
Not a Resource Concern. Classic gulles are not present.	-					NOT
		meet		meet		meet
Concentrated Rem - Classic Gulfy Erosion- Renge	-	PC		PC		PC
Not a Resource Concern. Classic gullies are not present.	-	NOT		NOT		NOT
		meet		meet		meet
Exemusive Bank Erosion - Crop				TÖ		Ö
Not a Resource Concern. Streams, shorelines or water conveyance channels are not on or adjacent to cropland field(s).	1	NOT		NOT		NOT
		PC		PC		PC
Excessive Bank Erosion - Pasture and the Control of the	Continued concerns with bank		Banks will become stable, protected			
Banks are NOT stable. Muddy livestock river crossings and bank erosion is evident. Alternative water sites are not present.	the second second second co	NOT	or rock or a combination of materials	NOT		NOT
		meet	implemented practices	meet		meet
Financhia Bash Carelan , Compland				10		1
Not a Resource Concern, Streams, shorelines or water conveyance channels are not on or adjacent to farmstead field(s)	-					
		meet		meet		meet
Ezcessive Bank Eresion - Assoc Ag Land		PC		PC		PC
Not a Resource Concern. Streams, shorelines or water conveyance channels are not on or adjacent to field(s).	1	NOT		NOT		NOT
		meet		meet		meet
Excessive Bank Eresion - Perest		D		Ĩ		D
Not a Resource Concern. Streams, shorefines or water conveyance channels are not on or adjacent to forest lield(s).	1	NOT		NOT	1	NOT
		PC		PC		PC
Excessive Bank Erosion - Range			1			

Not a Resource Concern. Streams, aborefines or water conveyonce channels are not on or adjacent to the rangeland.	1 1	NOT	í I	NOT		NOT
SOIL: SOIL OUALITY DEGRADATION		PC		PC		PC
Organia matter depiction - Crop	1					
Not a Resource Concern. Permanent ground cover is greater than 80%.		NOT		NOT		NOT
		PC		PC		PC
WATER: EXCESS/INSUFFICIENT WATER	No chaose is intention efficiency		The method states commutately		T	100
Insufficient Une filipient use of Irrigation water)	without NRCS assistance.		and management will meet state			
The planned land units are imigated, and the system DOES NOT meet the the stata-specific intigation efficiency criteria.		NOT	specific eniciency criteria.	NOT		NOT
		PC		PC		PC
WATER: WATER QUALITY DEGRADATION				1200		
Excess nutrients in surface and ground waters - Crop						
Not a Resource Concern. Nutrient amendments are being applied according to soliptant test recommendations and conservation practices are in place to minimum surface		NOT		NOT		NOT
and ground water impacts.		meet PC		PC		PC
Excess nutrents in surface and pround waters - Posture	Continued concerns with nutrient	Π	Minimized surface and groundwater		-	
Continuous grazing along the Sevier River in the watershed contributes P to the River	waters concerns without NRCS	NOT	impacts due to practices implemented.	NOT		NOT
	assistance.	meet		meet		meet
Excess meterins in surface and growne waters - numbered Not a Barguine Concern. Converticion participa and managements are in place to propertie inspects to surface and pre-polyaster AND surface and pre-polyaster are	-	NOT		NOT		NOT
pretected from contamination due to runoff and leaching from storage artes, spills, and other concentrated sources.		meet		meel		meet
		PC		PC		PC
Excess pathogene and chemicals from manure, bio-solide or compost applications - Crep		ш	5			
Not a Resource Concern. Potential sources of psthogens or pharmaceuticals and hot applied on the land.		moet		NOT meet		moet
		PC		PC		PC
Excess pathogons and chemicals from manure, bio-solids or compost applications - Pasture						
Not a Resource Concern. Potential sources of pathogens or pharmaceuticals are not applied on the land.		NOT		NOT		NOT
		PC		PC		PC
Expess pathogene and chemicals from manuro, bio-solids or compost applications - Farmatead						
Not a Resource Concern. Potential sources of pathogens or pharmaceuticals are not applied on the land.	1	NOT		NOT		NOT
		PC		PC	1	PC
Exessables sediment in surfaces walters - Crop						
Not a Resource Concern.		NOT		NOT		NOT
		PC		PC		PC
Excessive sediment in surface waters - Pastore	Continued concerns with sediment transported to ground and surface		Heavy use areas will be stabilized, SVAP2 bank condition score will		141	
Stratinis of andremis and adjacent to the alle, and banks, interacts of herical water crossings Artic (IC) Factor.	waters without NRCS assistance.	NOT	improve to ≥5 and upslope treatment and/or practices will address	NOT		NOT
		meet PC	sedment delivery to the river	PC		meet PC
Escessive sediment in surface waters - Farmateed				m		
Nol a Resource Concern.	1	NOT		NOT		NOT
		PC		PC		PC
Excessive sodiment in surface waters - Aasee Ag Land		Ő		Ū		Ŭ
Not a Resource Concern.		NOT		NOT		NOT
		PC		PC		PC
Exessables sedenent in serface waters - Perust						
Nex a Habourd Curkent.		TON meet		NOT		NOT
	Continued concerns with sectment	PC	Heavy use smas will be stabilized.	PC		PC
There are unimated sources of erceion and there are no streams or shorelines adjacent to the site.	transported to ground and surface	NOT	SVAP2 bank condition score will			NOT
	Mailers Werkel INFICO assistance.	meet	and practices will address sedment	moet		most
AIR: AIR QUALITY IMPACTS	Station and and and and	I PC	dervery to muse.	T PG	Concernance and the second	PL
PLEVIE DEGRADED PLANT CONDITION	CALIFIC STREET,			,		
Undestrates plant productivity and leads - Pastere Not a Resource Concern. Plant production and beets to not a client concern.	-					
No a resource concert. Pain productor and reset is not a creat concert.		NOT meet		NOT		meet
Undestrable plant productivity and health - Range	Continued concerns with Plant-	PC	Range trend will improve with	PC		PC
Trend is negative	production and health without NRCS	NOT	implementation of practices.	NOT		NOT
	mana particip,	meet		meet		meet
Inadequale structure and composition - Range	Continued concerns with plant	1 TT	Practices will be implemented to	PC		
Trend is negative.	communities' diversity, composition and structure concerns without	NOT	attain plant communities with adequate diversity, composition and	NOT		NOT
	NRCS assistance.	PC	structure to support desired ecological functions.	PC		PC meet
Escensive plant pest pressure - Penture						
Not a Resource Cencern. Plant productivity is not limited from pest pressure.		NOT		NOT		NOT
Received and the second second		PC		PC		PC
Russessore years protyprocess's - Perest Net a Revolute Concern. Plant productively is not limited from pest pressure	-					
Debu in Presidential Socialization in anti-productively for the relation from previously or determined.		MOT		TON meet		moot
Expositive plant peak prosisiure - Range		PC	-	PC		PC
Not a Resource Concern: Plant productivity is not lenited from pest pressure.				NOT		NOT
		meet		meet		meet
ANIMALS: DEADEQUATE BABITAT / FISH & WILDLIFE	all an article and	I PC		1 PC		PU
Habitat degradation - quantity and quality of food - Wildlife Modifier	Continued concerns with Habitat		Quantity, quality and connectivity of food, water, apage and cover in the			
Conservation practices and management ARE NOT in place to meet or exceed spoces habital model thresholds.	CONCILIENCE WITH A PART AND A LON	1	the second			
	assistance	1.00-	planning area we support the site	Aller		MOT .
1	assistance	NOT	planning area we support the life cycle requirements for fish & wildre species after establishment of	NOT		NOT
	assistance.	NOT meet PC	planning area we support the life cycle requirements for fish & widthe species after establishment of practices.	NOT meet PC		NOT meet PC
A Share degradular - winning and quality of white - Widdle Mediter	Continued concerns with Habitat	NOT meet PC	planning area well support the life cycle requirements for fish & widdle species affect establishment of practices. Quantity, quality and connectivity of food, water, space and cover in the	NOT meet PC		NOT meet PC
tsaksis degradision - eukintip enf euking ef er i ter - Welde Bediller Streams ARE present on the site. Banks are degraded with continuous livestock grazing.	Continued concerns with Habitat degradation without NRCS assistance	NOT meet PC	planning area we support the life cycle requirements for fable. A velocite species after establishment of practices. Quantity, quality and connectivity of food, water, space and cover in the planning area will support the life such area inserts for Gibs - utakto	NOT meet PC		NOT PC
rsakas regisalston : quantity end quakty of #ister - Walde Madiler Sitewas ARE present on this site. Banks are degraded with continuous livestock grazing.	degradation without net.cs assistance. Continued concerns with Habitat degradation without NRCS assistance.	NOT PC	parameters area well support the lite cycle requirements for fiss & weldle species after establishment of practices. Outshift, quality and connectivity of food, water, space and cover in the planning area well support the life opcide requirements for fiss & weldlife species after establishment of	NOT PC		NOT PC NOT meet
rabust eegadsion - quantity and quality of #ixter - Weldid Modifier Streams ARE present on this site. Banks are degraded with continuous livestock gezang.	degradation without net.co assistance. Continued concerns with Habitat degradation without NRCS assistance.	NOT PC NOT Reet PC	parameter area well support the site cycle requirements for fish 3, weldle species after establishment of practices. Quantity, quality and connectivity of food, water, space and cover in the favoring rans will support the life cycle requirements for fish 3, widdle practices.	NOT PC NOT MOT PC		NOT PC NOT PC
Realist degradations (sciently and quality of waters bidden's landsner. Streams ARE present on the size. Banks are degraded with continuous livestook graung Stabilist degradation - quantity and quality of accuritybulke - Water Maddle Maddler.	page statistic virtues association with Habitat Sonthuses concerns with Habitat degradation virtueur NRCS assistance	NOT PC NOT PC	partning are we support the life cycle negatiment of brich & different species after establishment of paractose. Quantity, quality and connectivity of food, water, space and cover in the partning area with upport the life cycle negatiments for fish & wildlife packies after establishment of pactoses.	NOT PC NOT PC		NOT PC NOT PC

NRCS-CPA-52, April 2013 Page 2

Not a Resource Concern.		NOT meet PC		NOT meet PC		NOT meet PC
Hebitat degradation - habitat centinutinpinae - Wildlife bieldfor Not a Resource Concern		NOT		NOT		
		meet PC		meet PC	5. 2.	meet PC
ANIHALS: LIVESTOCE PRODUCTION LINETATION Inadequals hod and forage - Grading Bodifier	1					m
Not a Resource Concern. Field and forege meets the needs of the firestock and supplemential field needs are addressed.		NOT meet PC		NOT meet PC		NOT meet PC
Insdequate Breatook ahniter - Grazing Biedifier Not a Resource Concern: Shelters MEET anima baath and clear needs.		NOT		NOT		
		PC		PC		PC
neergens availas water - unlang availang Not a Rescurse Cencern. Water quality and quantity (5 adequality distributed to meet animal needs.		NOT		NOT		NOT
ENERGY: INIXI'I CILINI' KINENCY KIN		PC		PC		PC
HUMAN: ECONOMIC & SOCIAL CONSIDERATIONS						
Land Lian Land use is contently livestock grazing along the ripation area and attalls hay production above the ripation area. Grinaung also occurs on the uplands above the hay granicion.	No charge in land use is expected.		Land use will not change on private lan The area with the brush treatment will r rest period to establish the range planti grazing management plan.	ids. require a ing and		
Cephili Each client's ability to mplement the proposed alternative will be detarmaned on an undividual basis.	No Effect		Client shifty to install practices will be determined on an individual basis.			
Public Health and Safety	There may be negative effects for the	clients	Effects will be positive on the clients ar	vd l		
Durnefly there are problems with Phosphorous loading into the Senier River, widdle and fishery habitats have deterioristic bacause of streambank damage by livestock grading.	Involved and the community because continued streambank damage.	al	community with the installation of prop practices. No hazards have been ident	nsed ified		
G. Special Environmental Concerns	J. Impacts to Special Enviro	nmente	Concerns			
(Document existing/ benchmark conditions)	No Action Document all impacts		Alternative 1 Document all impacts	44	Alternative 2 Document all impacts	44
	(Attach Guide Sheets as applicable)	needs lurthor action	(Attach Guide Sheets as applicable)	needs further action	(Attach Guide Sheets as applicable)	needs turither action
Clean Air Act Cuide Shart FS1 FS.2	No Effect		No Elfect		-	
No Nonatainent or Manienzoe areas designated for non-attainment of air quelity standards AND there are no Class 1 areas nearby. Source: EPA Non Attainment map.	ITU ALANCATO	needs further action	тол вружных	needs turther action		needs further action
eClean Waler Act / Sec 404 Walers of the U.S.	No Effect		No Effect			
Guide Sheet Fact Sheet The Sevier River are potential Walars of the US present in the planning area.	Not applicable	needs further action	No discharge or placement of dredged or fill material into potential Waters of the US is planned or likely to occur from implemented practices.	needs further ection		needs further action
e Cisan Water Act / Sec 303 Impaired Waters	No Effect		No Effect			
Guode Sheet Upper Sevier FMDL completed in 2004 kaled stream for Total Phosphorus and Habrial Alteration.	Not applicable	needs further action	Practices will reduce degradation of 303(d) issted stream segment by slabilizing streambanks, and getting cattle off of the Sevier River	needs luther action		needs further action
eClean Water Act / Sec 402 National Pollutant Discharge Elimination	No Elfect		No Effect		-	
Guide Sheef Fact Sheef No pont-source discharges accur in planning area based on planner observation of field conditions.	Not applicable	needs further	No point source discharges will occur from planned practices.	needs further		needs further
aCoastal Zone Management	No Effect		No Effect			
Guide Sheet Fact Sheet No Coastal Zone Management Anues are in or near the planning area.	Not applicable	needs further	Not applicable	needs further sction		needs lurither action
Corel Reefs	No Effect	-	No Effect	-		
Gode Sheet Fact Sheet No coral reels or associated water bodies (e.g. embayment areas) are present in or near the planning area.	Not applicable	needs further action	Not applicable	needs further action		needs further action
•Cultural Resources / Historic Properties	No Effect		May Effect	п	-	
Guide Sheet Fect Sheet	Not applicable	needs further action	Consultation with SHPO will be completed and no adverse effect to cultural resources or historic properties is anticipated in the proposed APE	needs further action		needs further action
eEndangered and Threatened Species	No Elfect		No Effect			
Guide Sheet Fact Sheet Fact Sheet Fact Sheet Fact Sheet The Utah Praire Dog, Burrowing Owl, Northern Goshawk, Leatherside Chub, Greater Sage Grouse, Pygmy rabbit, the Bonneville Cutthroat trout and/or their habitats are present in proximity to the planning area, based on: the Utah Usi of Threatened, Endoanced, and Sansitive Species' Paroutich Ouad,	Not applicable	needs further action	See attached documentation.	needs further action		needs further action
Environmental Justice	No Effect		No Effect		-	
No low-income or minority populations or Indian Tribes live In proximity to the planning area.	Not applicacie	needs further action	(NOT EDDROADING	needs further action		needs further action
-Essential Fish Habitat	No Elfect		No Effect			
Guide Sheef FactSheet No essential fish habitat is in the planning area.	Not applicable.	needs further action	Not applicable.	needs further action		needs luther action
Floodplain Management	No Effect		No Effect			
Golde Scheel Fact Sheel	Not applicable e	needs further action	No increased flood hazard or offer adverse offect to the axisting natural and beneficial values of the floodplain or lands adjacent or downstream is Kiety because the proposed precises will enhance the ability of the floodplain to reacreer from flood events with the stabilization of the funct herit	needs further action		needs further action
h s	I. I				l	1 1

	Invasive Species		No Effect		No Effect			
	Guide Sheet	Fact Sheet	Not applicable	-	Not applicable	_		-
	Westwood	COUCH THISNE and Greatgrass, AHE present in or near the planning area. Source : UC Kristi		further		lurther		further
	Migratory Birds/Ba	ald and Golden Eagle Protection Act	No Effect	-	No Effect			
	Guide Sheet	Fact Sheet	Not applicable		No take of any migratory bird, nest, or			
	There is migralory bird	d habitat and Golden Eagle habitat in the planning areaa.		needs	egg is expected to occur because planned practices will not take place	needs hutber		needs further
				action	during their nesting period of March 1 August 31. There will be no take or	action		action
					disturb eagles because practices will			
					areas.			
	Natural Areas		No Etfect		No Effect			
	Guide Sheet	Fact Sheet	Not applicable		Not applicable			
	There are no designate	ted natural areas present in or near the planning area.		needs further		further		further
				action		action		action
	Prime and Unique Es	anntanda	No Ettect		No Effect			
Interface Interface <t< td=""><td>Guide Sheet</td><td>Fact Sheet</td><td>No effect due to no change in land</td><td></td><td>No conversion of familand to</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>	Guide Sheet	Fact Sheet	No effect due to no change in land		No conversion of familand to			
	Prime familands (only	il inigated) and familands of statewide/local importance are present in the planning area.	usa.	further	nonagricultural use is planned.	further		further
				action		action		action
	Riparian Area		No Effect		No Effect	-		
take to make a form the server set in grant or	Guide Sheet	Fact Sheet	Not applicable		Practices will maintain or improve			
	Riparian amas along t	the Servier River are present in the planning area.		needs further	water quality, water quantity and tish and wildlife benefits provided by the	needs further		needs
teres them				action	riparian area(s).	action		action
Constraint Autom Nation Nati	Casala Baayaha		No Effect		No Effect	-		-
The me manufacture for the form the work in a manufacture is a new of high light form and me means a low of a new of high light form and me means a low of a new of high light form and me means a low of a new of high light form and me means a low of a new of high light form and me means a low of a new of high light form and me means a low of a new of high light form and me means a low of a new of high light form and me means a low of a new of high light form and me means a low of a new of high light form and me means a low of a new of high light form and me means a low of a new of high light form and me means a low of a new of high light form and me means a low of a new of high light form and high	Guide Sheet	Fact Shoot	No change from benchmark	ш	Planned practices will blend into the	10		
	The area surrounds the	he Sevier River and has pastures adjacent to the river with alfalfa hay farms above the pastures, sagebrush grasslands above the hay farms and on the	conditions.	needs	scenic quality of the general landscape and not adversely affect	needs		needs
Name Just Start Personal <	of the second seco			action	the upper Sevier River watershed.	action		action
The set is	Maria and		No Effect	-	No Ettect	-		-
Interfaction whet (FC Interfaces) whet (F	Guide Sheet	Fact Sheet	No impact to wetlands is expected		No effect on wetlands in or near the			
In and matching in the second seco	Wettands may be pres	sent in the planning area, but no official designation of wetlands has been made.	without NRCS assistance.	needs	planning area is expected because	needs		needs
Number of the second of the				action	enhance wefands.	action		action
			No Filler		No Filmer			
bit for and a to this shapping tright for a product of any solution is built to the black house house of any solution is black house h	• Wild and Scenic Rit Guide Sheet	Fact Sheet	Not applicable		Not applicable			
Left Left Left <th< td=""><td>No Federal or State de</td><td>lesignated Wild, Scenic, or Recreational river segments or rivers listed in the Nationwide Rivers Inventory (NRI) are present in or near the planning area</td><td></td><td>needs</td><td></td><td>needs</td><td></td><td>needs</td></th<>	No Federal or State de	lesignated Wild, Scenic, or Recreational river segments or rivers listed in the Nationwide Rivers Inventory (NRI) are present in or near the planning area		needs		needs		needs
C. Ober Agencies and Bread Pachin Concertant Advancebury I Advancebury				action	1	action		action
Non-work with the second and sec	V Other Annual	as and Brasd Bublin Consorre						-
Langender	R. Other Agencie		No Action		Alternative 1 Alternative 2		Alternative 2	
And have a pack for Let interpret region (III) (UPE) by its to insurance drow packs now on unit an energicity fem. Now Properties Sector 100 (now is: 500) L . Higherine Sector 100 (now is: 500) Now Now Now Now L . Higherine Sector 100 (now is: 500) Now	Easements, Permissio Correr of Engineers by	ions, Public Review, or Permits Required and Agencies Consulted. A 404 Permit will be obtained from the Utsh Division of Water Rights and the Army afree the installation of any consticutes. The NECS State Cub and Review rear SourceList will also be consulted before now constitues are implemented on						
	individual farms or put	blic lands. Land management agencies (BLM, USFS) will also be consulted when practices occur on land managed by them.	None Required		404 Permit, USACE; 401 Certification Agency	n, State		
Decide lines for the lines of the lines of the second and sec					Section 106 review, SHPD			
L Migetion Product sources, ends and expendences, May milligation measures will be considered as the planning continues into individual Control Product sources, end showing and products and as the planning continues into individual Control Product sources, ends and the planning continues into individual Control Product sources, end showing and the planning continues into individual Control Product sources, end spontational measures and individual control Products and as the planning continues into individual Control Product sources and showing and the planning continues into individual Control Product sources and showing and the planning continues into individual Control Product sources and showing and the planning continues into individual Control Product sources and showing and the planning continues into individual Control Product Sources and	Cumulative Effects Ne known cumulative effe	amaive (Describe the cumulative impacts considered, including past, present and known future actions regardless of who performed the actions) No acts.	None		None			
L Higher Higher data to the sole, and expresses, Any miligation measures will be considered as the planning continues into individual conservation plans for effected indiverses. H, Prelamint Pre	State of the							
L Hingston Proceed services, namines, and sumpressed, Arry miligation measures will be considered as the planning continues into individual Proceed services and a service of indinate service of individua								
La Hilgalian La Hi	1							
http://www.interest.ex.go.understand.yourgenergy and yourgenergy and yourgene	L. Mitigation	and which a standard standard and a standard and a standard standard standard standard standard standard standa	1					
Arrenative A	conservation plan	ins for affected landowners.					1	
MP Preferent Implementative Implementative Implementative Implementative Describe inpacts (- or -) on my resource not identified devic: Implementative implementative Implementative implementative Implementative								
Attenuitive Implementation Implementation Implementation Decide impacts (- or -) on any secures not kentified doe: Implementation Implem	M. Preferred	and and allowed allowed as	-	661				
Describe invests (+ or -) on any resource not kinnfield don:	Alternative	programmas and makene			U		L	- 12
Decode invests (is e) on my resources not behind above:	See Area							
In a domains meds its Sweer Row Watersheld Plan guids and furthers for seconces and weldle habits. If a domains medse its Sweer Row Watersheld Plan guids and furthers for seconces and weldle habits. If a domains medse its Sweer Row Watersheld Plan guids and furthers for seconces and weldle habits. If a domains medse its Sweer Row Watersheld Plan guids and furthers for seconces and weldle habits. If a domains medse its Sweer Row Watersheld Plan guids and furthers for seconces and weldle habits. If a domains medse its Sweer Row Watersheld Plan guids and furthers for seconces and weldle habits. If a domains medse its Sweer Row Watersheld Plan guids and furthers for seconces and weldle habits. If a domains the second plan guids and furthers for seconces and weldle habits. If a domains the second plan guids and furthers for seconces and weldle habits. If a domains the second plan guids and furthers for seconces and weldle habits. If a domains the second plan guids and furthers for second plan guids and furthers	Describe impacta (+ o	or -) on any resources not identified above:						
Begoining means B								
N. Content [Record contact of alternative snellyce] N. Content [Record alternative snellocid contact the Blate Environmental Lialon as there may be extraordinary circumstances and significance issues to consider and a ste specific NEPA analysis may be required. N. Content [Record alternative snellocid contact the Blate Environmental Lialon as there may be extraordinary circumstances and significance of an alternative snellocid contact the Blate Environment [Record contact alternative snellocid contact the Blate Environment [Record contact			proposed practices will stabilize the n	er vesser: rerbank,	improve water quality, and make better	use of to	age resources and wildlife habitat.	304. 1 N
No. Context (Record contact of alternative sanayse) The significance of an action must be analyzed in several contexts such as society as a whole (human, national), the affected interests, and the locality. C. Determination of Bignificance or Extraordinary Circumstances Intensity: C. Determination of Bignificance or Extraordinary Circumstances Intensity: Refers to the severity of impact Impacts may be both beneficial and adverse. A significant effect may add even if the Federal agency believes that on balance the effect will be beneficial. Significance cannot be avoided by larming an action temporary or by both beneficial and adverse. A significant effect may add even if the Federal agency believes that on balance the effect will be beneficial. Significance cannot be avoided by larming an action temporary or by bracking (decomponent parts. If you answer AWT of the below questions "yee" then contact the Blate Environmental Lialson as there may be extraordinary circumstances and significance issues to consider and a site specific NEPA analysis may be required. Yee No		Supporting reason						
We be adjustioned of a damage analyzed in a service analyzed in a service analyzed in a service damage of a damagee of requirements i domage of requirements i domage of a damage of a da			1	Inclusion	-) Ditata			
O. Determination of Significance or Extraordinary Circumstances Interactly: Relevant to the seventy of Impact. Impacts may be both beneficial and adverse. A significant effect may add even if the Federal agency believes that on balance the effect will be beneficial. Significance earnot be avoided by larming an action temporary or by breaking if down into small component pars. If you answer AVM of the balave greations "yes" then contact the Blats Environmental Llaion as there may be extraordinary circumstances and significance issues to consider and a site specific NEPA analysis may be required. If you answer AVM of the balave the effect of the proteines alternative expected to agostificantly affect unique characteristics of the greaterine alternative expected to agostificantly affect unique characteristics of the greaternet alternative expected to agostificantly affect unique characteristics of the bighty controversal? A we the affects of the preferred alternative establish a precedent of future actions with significant instance or unicomment (large) to be highly controversal? A we the affected alternative establish a precedent of future actions with significant environment (large) to be bighty controversal? A we the affected alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant environment (large) to be highly controversal? A we the affected alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant environment (large) to be unique active with significant environment (large) to be unique active with significant environment (large) to be unique to require alternative stables are alternative to the special environment (large) to environment? A we the affectered alternative stables are expecied to have potentially significant environment (large) to be unique active with significant environment (large) to be unique active with significant environment (large) to be unique active stables are alternative to the species, environmental (uscice, wetlande, floodplans, costal zones, costal	N. Context (Heco The significance o	ord context of atternatives analysis) of an action must be analyzed in several contexts such as society as a whole (human, national), the affected region, the affecte	d interests, and the locality	region	al jwaters	ned	Contraction of the local data	
O. Determination of alignificance or Extinctionary Oreumatances Intravely: a failers to the service of the predict of a specific and adverse. A significant effect may exist even if the Federal agency believes that on balance the effect will be beneficial. Significance earnot be avoided by larming an action temporary or by bracking if down how mail composed on parts. If you answer AVF of the balance the effect of the predicted attemative expected to cause significant effects on public health or sale or possible or early and the effect of the predicted attemative expected to cause significant effects on public health or sale or exposed or cause significant effects on public health or sale or exposed or cause significant effects on public health or sale or exposed or cause significant effects on public health or sale or exposed or cause significant effects on public health or sale or exposed or cause significant effects on public health or sale or exposed or cause significant effects on public health or sale or exposed or cause significant effects on public health or sale or exposed or cause significant effects on public health or sale or exposed or cause significant effects on public health or sale or exposed or cause significant effects on public health or sale or exposed or cause significant effects on involve unique or unknown isks on the human environment?					A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL	1.1		124
Intersetty: Fallers to be serving of impact. Inspact. Inspact. Inspact. They be bob bondicial and adverse. A significant effect may exist even if the Federal agency believes that on balance the effect will be beneficial. Significance sanot be avoided by laming an action temporary or bob bondicial resources may be bob bondicial test the State Environmental Lialson as there may be extrementionary circumstances and significance liseues to consider and a alte specific HEPA analysis may be required. Yes No Performed alternative expected to cause significant effects on public health or salety? Performed alternative expected to cause significant effects on public health or salety? Performed alternative expected to equivalent effects on public health or salety? Performed alternative expected to equivalent effects on public health or salety? Performed alternative expected to equivalent effects on public health or salety? Performed alternative expected to equivale affects on public health or salety? Performed alternative expected to equivale affect and environment likely to be highly controversial? Performed alternative establish a precedent of involve unique or unknown index or represent a decision in principle about a future consideration? Performed alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant environment impacts to the evaluation Procedure Guide Sheets to assist in this determination. This includes, but is not limited to, concerns such a flood or involve unique or unknown injects to the evaluation Procedure Guide Sheets to assist in this determination. This includes, but is not limited to, concerns such a flood parts. costal zones. Performed alternative threate a violation of Federal, State, or local law or requirements for the protection of the environment? Performed alternative threate a violation of Federal, State, or local law or requirements for the protection of the environment? Performed alternative threate a violation of Federal, State, or local law or requirements for the	O. Determination	n of Significance or Extraordinary Circumstances						
by by basis if idem into small component parts if yeas anawer MVP of the balow questions "yes" than contact the Blats Environmental Lialson as there may be extraordinary circumstances and significance issues to consider and a site specific NEPA analysis may be required. Vers No Constructions "yes" than contact the Blats Environmental Lialson as there may be extraordinary circumstances and significance issues to consider and a site specific NEPA analysis may be required. Vers No Constructions "yes" than contact the Blats Environmental Lialson as there may be extraordinary circumstances and significance issues to consider and a site specific NEPA analysis may be required. Vers No Constructions of the preferred alternative expected to assess significant effects on public health or safety? Constructions of the preferred alternative expected to significantly effect unique characteristics of the geographic area such as proximity to historic or cultural resources, park lands, prime farmlands, welfands, wild and scenic rivers, or ecologically cilicat Constructions of the preferred alternative heav heave highly uncertain effects on involve unique or unknown likes on the human environment? Constructions of the preferred alternative heave highly uncertain effects or involve unique or unknown likes on the human environment? Constructions of the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment? Constructions of the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment? Constructions of the index alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment? Constructions of historical resources, endangeed and threatened species, environmental function, weitands, floooplans, costal zones, coral reefs exsential lish habitat, wild and scenic rivers, clean alternative should have a substained appecies, environmental function, weitands, floooplans, costal zones, coral reefs exsential lish habitat, wild and	Intensity: Refers	to the severity of impact. Impacts may be both beneficial and adverse. A significant effect may exist even if the Federal agence	y believes that on balance the eff	ect will	be beneficial. Significance cann	ot be av	olded by terming an action temp	оналу в
Yes No Ves No vesting a state of the based questions yes "then conduct the state build manual ballion as the may be extingerularly circumstances and significant is a state performed. The state build manual ballion as the may be extingerularly circumstances and significant is a state performed. The state build manual ballion as the may be extingerularly circumstances and significant is be preferred alternative expected to easies significant effects on public health or sales? vesting the preferred alternative expected to significant effects on public health or sales? vesting the preferred alternative expected to significant effects on involve unique on tractoristics of the geographic area such as proximity to historic or cultural resources, park lands, prime farmlands, wellands, wild and scenic rivers, or ecologically critical servers? vesting the preferred alternative show highly uncertain effects or involve unique or unknown lisks on the human environment? vesting the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment limpacts for ne quality of the human environment environment? vesting environment environment environment environment environment environment environment? vesting environment environment environment environment environme	by breaking it dow	en into small component parts						
Yes No Yes No Image: Second	n you answer Are	at of the perces questions, yes, then contact the state chargemental matson as there may be extraordinary circumsta	nces and significance issues to	consi	ser and a ane apecine nervai	uniyata t	may be required.	
Is the preferred alternative expected to cause significant affects on public health or stelly? Is the preferred alternative expected to significantly affect unique characteristics of the approximity to historic or cultural resources, park lands, prime farmlands, welfands, wild and scenic rivers, or ecologically critical ereas? Is the preferred alternative expected to significantly affect unique characteristics of the preferred alternative expected to significantly affect unique characteristics of the highly controversial? Is the preferred alternative expected to significant preferred alternative with agent/farm for tabut actions with agent/farm links to the highly controversial? Is the preferred alternative have highly uncertain effects or involve unique or unknown links on the human environment? Is the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment impacts to the quality of the human environment impacts to the quality of historical resources, endangeed and threatened species, environmental justice, wetlands, floodplans coastal zones, coal reefs essential lish habitat, wild and scenic rivers, clean alt, ripatian areas, natural areas, end invadive species. Is the based of my knowledge, the data above on this form is accurate and onequilete.	Yes No							
the preferred alternative expected to significantly affect unique characteristics of the geographic area such as proximity to historic or cultural resources, park lands, prime familands, wellands, wild and scenic rivers, or ecologically critical ensary		Is the preferred alternative expected to cause significant effects on public health or safety?						
A det the diffects of the preferred alternative on the quality of the human environment likely to be highly controversial? Obes the preferred alternative have highly uncertain effects or involve unique or unknown insks on the human environment? Obes the preferred alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant impacts or represent a decision in principle about a future consideration? Obes the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environmental impacts for the quality of the human environment either individually or cumulatively over time? Obes the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environmental concerns? Use the Evaluation Procedure Guide Sheets to assist in this determination. This includes, but is not limited to, concerns such cultural or historical resources, endangered and threatened species, environmental justice, watands, floodplans costal zones, coral reets, essential fieh habitat, wild and scenic rivers, clean alt, riparian areas, natural areas, and invasive estimation based on by knowledge, the data above no this form is accurate and oncepties: One have preferred alternative to a TRDE environmental for the protection of the environment?		 Is the preferred atternative expected to significantly affect unique characteristics of the geographic area such as proximity to prese? 	to historic or cultural resources, pr	urk land	s, prime farmlands, wellands, wi	d and s	cenic rivers, or ecologically critica	n 1
A ke the affects of the preferred alternative on the quality of the human environment likely to be highly controvensial? Obes the preferred alternative have highly underain offects or involve unique or unknown misks on the human environment? Obes the preferred alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant environment impacts or represent a decision in principle about a future consideration? offect alternative stability a precedent for future actions with significant environment impacts to the quality of the human environment either individually or cumulatively over time? obes the preferred alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant environment impacts to the quality of the human environment either individually or cumulatively over time? obs the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment impacts to the quality of the human environment either individually or cumulatively over time? outling on bisolical resources, endangeed and threatened species, environmental justica, watands, floodplana, coastal zones, cora reefs essential lish habitat, wild and scene rivers, clean alt, ripatian areas, natural areas, and invasive species. while the preferred alternative threaten a violation of Federal, State, or local law or requirements for the protection of the environment? while the preferred alternative threaten a violation of Federal, State, or local law or requirements for the protection of the environment? while the preferred alternative threaten and complete: when the table above no this form is accurate and complete: a construct on the protection of a table above no this form is accurate and complete: a construct on the protection of the data above on this form is accurate and complete: a construct on the protection of the protection of the protection of the construct of the data dabove on this form is accurate and complete: be accurate t								
Costs the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant impacts or represent a decision in principle about a future consideration? Costs the preferred alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant environment impacts to the quality of the human environment either individually or cumulatively over time? Costs the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environmental concerns? Use the Evaluation Procedure Guide Sheets to assist in this determination. This includes, but is not imited to, concerns such cultural or historical resources, endangered and threatened species, environmental justice, watands, floodplans, costal zones, coral rests, essential lish habitat, wild and scenic rivers, clean alt, riparian areas, natural areas, and investive species. Will the preferred alternative threaten a violation of Federal, State, or local faw or requirements for the protocom of the environment? Will the preferred alternative threaten a violation of Federal, State, or local faw or requirements for the protocom of the environment? Vior the best of my knowledge, the data above on this form is accurate and on cost of the protocom of the environment?		Are the effects of the preferred alternative on the quality of the human environment likely to be highly controversial?						
o Does the preferred alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant impacts or represent a decision in principle about a future consideration? o Nes the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment impacts to the quality of the human environment either individually or cumulatively over time? o Will the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environmental concerns? Use the Evaluation Procedure Guide Sheets to assist in this determination. This includes, but is not limited to, concerns such cultural or historical resources, endangered and threatened species, environmental justice, watands, floodplans costal zones, coral reets, essential fich habitat, wild and scenic rivers, clean ait, riparian areas, natural areas, and invasive cultural or historical resources. Independent of Federal, State, or local faw or requirements for the protection of the environment? o Will the preferred alternative threaten a violation of Federal, State, or local faw or requirements for the protection of the environment? o Will the preferred alternative threaten a violation of Federal, State, or local faw or requirements for the protection of the environment?			7					
Is the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment impacts to the quality of the human environment either individually or cumulatively over time? Will the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environmental concernes? Use the Evaluation Procedure Guide Sheets to assist in this determination. This includes, but is not limited to, concerns such cultural or historical resources, endangered and threatened species, environmental justice, waitands, floodplans, costal zones, coral reefs: essential lish habitat, wild and scenic rivers: clean air, riparian areas, natural areas, and invasive species. Will the preferred alternative threaten a violation of Federal, State, or local law or requirements for the protection of the environment? Yo the best of my knowledge, the data abover, on this form is accurate and complete:		Does the preferred alternative have highly uncertain effects or involve unique or unknown risks on the human environment		in?				
Will the preferred alternative likely have a significant adverse effect on ANY of the special environmental concerns? Use the Evaluation Procedure Guide Sheets to assist in this determination. This includes, but is not imited to, concerns such species. Will the preferred alternative likely have a significant adverse effect on ANY of the special environmental concerns? Use the Evaluation Procedure Guide Sheets to assist in this determination. This includes, but is not imited to, concerns such species. Will the preferred alternative threaten a violation of Federal, State, or local law or requirements for the protocion of the environment? Yo the best of my knowledge, the data above on this form is accurate and complete: Location of the data above on this form is accurate and complete:		Does the preferred alternative have highly uncertain effects or involve unique or unknown risks on the human environment Does the preferred alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant impacts or represent a decision in pr	inciple about a future consideration					
Will the preferred alternative likely have a significant adverse effect on ANY of the special environmental concerns? Use the Evaluation Procedure Guide Sheets to assist in this determination. This includes, but is not limited to, concerns such includes and invasive cultural or historical resources, endangeed and threatened species, environmental justice, watands, floodplans, costal zones, corral reefs, essential lish habitat, wild and scenic rivers, clean air, riparian areas, natural areas, and invasive species. will the preferred alternative threaten a violation of Federal, State, or local law or requirements for the protocion of the environment? Yo the best of my knowledge, the data above on this form is accurate and concerns to be the ford back and the habitat, wild and scenic rivers.		Does the preferred alternative have highly uncertain effects or involve unique or unknown risks on the human environment Does the preferred alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant impacts or represent a decision in pr Is the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have entantiatly clinificant analyzement.	of the human environment either	individe	ally or cumulatively over time?			
cultural of historical resources, endangend and threatened species, environmental justice, welfands, llooplans, coastil zones, cural reefs, essential lish habitat, wild and scale river. Clean ar, rpstim areas, natural areas, and invasion species.		Does the preferred alternative have highly uncertain effects or involve unique or unknown risks on the human environment Does the preferred alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant impacts or represent a decision in pr Is the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment impacts to the quality	inciple about a future consideration of the human environment either	individe	ally or cumulatively over time?			
proces. Will the preferred allemative fineation of Federal, State, or local law or requirements for the protection of the environment? P. To the best of my knowledge, the data shown on this form is accurate and complete: In the protection of the environment? P. To the best of my knowledge, the data shown on this form is accurate and complete:		Does the preferred alternative have highly uncertain effects or involve unique or unique or unknown risks on the human environment Does the preferred alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant impacts or represent a decision in pr Is the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment impacts to the quality Will the invaluence elements likely have a significant environment limpacts. The the invaluence of the invaluence elements and the invaluence elements are active environment.	inciple about a future consideration of the human environment either the Evaluation Proceeding Civits Civits	individe	ally or cumulatively over time?	s includ	as but is not limited to con	such -
Will the preferred allemative threaten a violation of Federal, State, or local law or requirements for the protection of the environment? To the best of my knowledge, the data shown on this form is accurate and complete: To the best of my knowledge, the data shown on this form is accurate and complete: To the best of my knowledge, the data shown on this form is accurate and complete:		Does the preferred alternative have highly uncertain effects or involve unique or unknown risks on the human environment Does the preferred alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant impacts or represent a decision in pr Is the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment impacts to the quality Will the preferred alternative likely have a significant adverse affect on ANY of the special environmental concerns? Use th cultural or historical resources, endangered and threatened species, environmental justice, wetlands, floodplans, coastal 2	inciple about a future consideration of the human environment either the Evaluation Procedure Guide S cones, coral reefs, essential fish h	individe heats to abitat, y	ally or cumulatively over time? assist in this determination Thi vild and scenic rivers, clean air, r	s includ Iparian a	es, but is not limited to, concerns areas, natural areas, and invasive	such a
Comparison of the set of my knowledge, the data shown on this form is accurate and complete: To the set of my knowledge, the data shown on this form is accurate and complete: To the set of my knowledge, the data shown on this form is accurate and complete: To the set of my knowledge, the data shown on this form is accurate and complete:		Does the preferred alternative have highly uncertain effects or involve unique or unknown risks on the human environment Does the preferred alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant impacts or represent a decision in pr is the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment impacts to the quality Will the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment impacts to the quality will on preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment impacts to the quality will only preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environmental environment is on the preferred alternative in the preferred andimension and preferred and the preferred andimension and prefere	inciple about a future consideration of the human environment either he Evaluation Procedure Guide S cones, coral reefs, essential fish h	individe heets to abitat, y	ally or cumulatively over time? assist in this determination Thi vild and scenic rivers, clean air, r	s include Iparian s	es, but is not limited to, concerns reas, natural areas, and invasive	such s
P. To the best of my knowledge, the data shown on this form is accurate and complete:		Does the preferred alternative have highly uncertain effects or involve unique or unknown risks on the human environment Does the preferred alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant impacts or represent a decision in pr Is the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment impacts to the quality Will the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment impacts to the quality Will the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environmental concerns? Use the cultural or historical resources, endangered and threatened species, environmental justice, wetlands, floodplans, custat a species, species. Will the preferred alternative threaten a violation of Faderal. State or local law or raminaments for the exception of the one of the preferred alternative threatened the environmental location of the environmental location.	inciple about a future consideration of the human environment either he Evaluation Procedure Guide S cones, coral reefs, essential lish h vironment?	individe heets to abitat, y	ally or cumulatively over time? assist in this determination Thi vild and scenic rivers, clean air, r	s includ Iparian a	es, but is not limited to, concerns reas, natural areas, and invasive	such a
In the service as one MBPS services for a TGDI society with algorithm (they are to also the fort elements) black and then MDPS is a service to a service service as a TGDI society with a service to a service service as a service service as a service s		Does the preferred alternative have highly uncertain effects or involve unique or unknown risks on the human environment Does the preferred alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant impacts or represent a decision in pr Is the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment impacts to the quality Will the preferred alternative likely have a significant adverse effect on ANY of the special environmental concerns? Use th cultural or historical resources, endangered and threatened species, environmental justice, wetlands, floodplans, coastal a species. Will the preferred alternative threaten a violation of Federal, State, or local law or requirements for the protoction of the em	inciple about a future consideration of the human environment either he Evaluation Procedure Guide S cones, coral reefs, essential lish h vironment?	individe heets to abitat, v	ally or cumulatively over time? assist in this determination Thi vild and scenic rivers, clean air, r	s includ Iparian s	es, but is not limited to, concerns reas, natural areas, and invasive	such a e
	. 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	 Does the preferred alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant impacts or represent a decision in pr bes the preferred alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant impacts or represent a decision in pr is the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment impacts to the quality will the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment impacts to the quality will the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment impacts to the quality will an bistorical resources, endangered and threatened species, environmental justice, weitands, floodplans, coastal z species. will the preferred alternative threaten a violation of Federal, State, or local law or requirements for the protection of the en my knowledge, the data abown on this form is accurate and complete: 	inciple about a future consideration of the human environment either he Evaluation Procedure Guide S cornes, coral reefs, essential fish h vironment?	individe heats to abitat, s	ially or cumulatively over time? easist in this determination. Thi ilid and scenic rivers, clean air, r	s include Iparian a	as, but is not limited to, concerns areas, natural ereas, end invasive	such r
	P. To the best of	Does the preferred alternative each highly uncertain effects or involve unique or unknown risks on the human environment Does the preferred alternative establish a precedent for future actions with significant impacts or represent e decision in pr Is the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environment impacts to the quality Will the preferred alternative known or reasonably expected to have potentially significant environmental encomers? Used cultural or historical resources, endangered and threatened species, environmental justice, wellands, lloodplans, coastal z species. Will the preferred alternative threaten violation of Federal, State, or local law or requirements for the protection of the en Iny knowledge, the data shown on this form is accurate and complete: a non-NRCS person (e.g. a TSP) assidts with planning they are to sign the first signature block and then NRCS is to sign the	inciple about a future consideration of the human environment either he Evaluation Procedure Guide S cones, coral reefs, essential lish h vironment?	individe heats to abitat, v	ially or cumulatively over time? easiat in this determination Thi elid and scenic rivers. clean air, r	s includ iparian s	as, but is not limited to, concerns preas, natural areas, and invasive	such a

The state	Signature (NRCS)	Title	Date		
eferred alt	ternative is not a federal action where NRCS has control or responsibility and this NRCS-CPA-52 is shared with someone or	ther than the client then indicate to whom this is being provided.			
	The following sections are to be completed by the R	esponsible Federal Official (RFO)			
CS is the Ri CS cannot i	IFD if the action is subject to NROS control and responsibility (e.g. actions financed, funded, assisted, conducted, regulated, or app control what the client ultimately does with that assistance and situations where NROS is making a technical determination (such as	roved by NHCS). These actions do not include situations in which NHCS is only a Farm Bill HEL or wetland determinations) not associated with the planning proc	r providing technical assistance be ess		
NEPA Con	mpliance Finding (check one) alternative:		Action required		
Ø	1) is not a federal action where the agency has control or rasponsibility		Document in "R 1" below No additional analysis is required		
	2) is a federal action ALL of which is categorically excluded from further environmental analysis AND there are no extraordin	ary circumstances as identified in Section "O".	Document in *R 2* below No additional analysis is required		
	 is a federal action that has been sufficiently analyzed in an existing Agency state, regional, or national NEPA document and <u>circumstances</u>. 	there are no predicted significant adverse environmental effects or extraordinary	Document in "R 1" below No additional analysis is required		
	4) is a faderal action that has been sufficiently analyzed in another Federal agency's NEPA document (EA or EIS) that addresses the proposed NRCS action and its' effects and has been formatly adopted by NRCS in required to prepare and publish its own Finding of No Significant Impact for an EA or Record of Decision for an EIS when adopting another agency's EA or EIS document. (Note: This beak is net applicable to FSA)				
	5) is a federal action that has NOT been sufficiently analyzed or may involve predicted significant adverse environmental effects	or extraordinary circumstances and may require an EA or EIS.	Contact the State Environmental Lialson. Further NEPA analysis required		
Rationale !	Supporting the Finding	Conservation Planning, up to and including engineering desing, is not a federal action; as long i	as there is no federal control.		
Hoable Cat re than one IA Part 650 (If this section	legorical Exclusion(s) mey apply) Complement With NEPA, subget 660 6 Calegorical Enclusions states prior to determining that a proposed action is calegorically excluded under paragraph , the proposed action must meet six sideboard criteria. See NECH 610 118.				
ive consid de the find Signature	dered the effects of the alternatives on the Resource Concerns, Economic and Social Coneiderations, Special Environment ding indicated above. of Responsible Federal Official: Signature	al Concerns, and Extraordinary Circumstances as defined by Agency regula	tion and policy and based on th		

6.0 Appendix: Follow Up

The practices that are installed and implemented will be tracked and evaluated in all areas of the watershed with an emphasis placed on the critical areas. Monitoring of the water quality through sampling shown in the interim metrics (Section 5.3 above) and loading to the Sevier River within the watershed will allow the effectiveness of the practices to be assessed. The practices offered will include fencing livestock off of the riparian area and providing alternate watering facilities, streambank stabilization, Pinyon-Juniper treatment (Brush Management), tree establishment, range planting, sprinkler systems, and irrigation water management.

The local NRCS office in cooperation with the UDWQ and Utah Department of Agriculture and Food (UDAF) have a great history of working together to stabilize sections of the Sevier River in the past and will continue these efforts with continued NWQI watershed assessment funding.

Outreach Plan

To engage local agricultural producers in the West Ditch Watershed, the Panguitch field office, in conjunction with the UDAF Watershed Coordinator, will create opportunities for one on one contact with those landowners in the critical areas identified in the watershed plan, as well as the entire watershed. The Upper Sevier Watershed Coordinator will contact each producer in the respective watershed to gauge interest in implementing projects identified in the watershed plan. Past outreach campaigns conducted in adjacent watersheds have proven that one on one contact has the greatest success rate when implementing a watershed plan. Through the use of GIS tools, a map has been created to identify landowners within the watershed that have not been contacted to improve their property through a watershed project.

Initial Contact: The Upper Sevier Watershed Coordinator and NRCS staff will make personal contact with each cooperator to inform them that some or all of the land that they manage is located within an active watershed management area. This will help establish personal relationship between operators and NRCS field staff. This will also allow NRCS and UDAF staff to make contact with operators who have not engaged with conservation planners in the past; since most contact has historically been made through cooperator office visits.

Personal visits to their farms: After initial contact is made, appointments will be scheduled for staff to meet with operators/landowners on their property to further discuss the goals of the watershed and the opportunities available to them. During visits, the expectation will be that operators/landowners, NRCS staff, and the local watershed coordinator can walk the property managed by the landowner and discuss

the conservation practices that could be implemented on the landscape to help address resource concerns. Additional visits will be scheduled as needed to complete the necessary planning of the identified conservation practices identified to address the resource concerns.

Field Days/Informational Meetings: Annually, each fall, a watershed tour is planned and conducted by the Upper Sevier Watershed Committee and NRCS. This will tour allows landowners, operators, and the local community to learn about the progress being made in the watershed, technical and financial resources available to implement similar projects on their property, and to promote new innovate conservation practices and concepts. This tour will also allow attendees to network with their neighbors, the Panguitch NRCS Field Office staff and the Upper Sevier Field Office staff.